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A global
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Message from our Chairwoman
The year just ended represented for us both
a record year in terms of Group performance
and the confirmation that we have witnessed
a change in our world. We went from stability and
security to a state of constant change and uncertainty
about the future.
With this in mind, we approach our business with a
continuous and unstoppable drive for change, not
merely for the pleasure of modifying the existing, but with
the firm belief that the only way to adapt to constantlyevolving markets, technologies, and rules is through
innovation.
Indeed, innovation has always been one of Bonfiglioli’s
strengths and we have continued to build on it over the
years, imbuing it with new meanings. When my father
founded Costruzioni Meccaniche Bonfiglioli, this word
meant two things to him: offering customers the most
cutting-edge products and adopting the most
modern processes available. In my first years of
work, to me innovation stood for understanding,
learning and applying new technologies,
ranging from organization to marketing, from the idea of
expanding into new countries to the adoption of
new manufacturing logics.
Today, here at Bonfiglioli we are perfectly
aware that there cannot be sustainable
innovation if the women and men of
our group do not feel included in the
transformation we are experiencing. And the
vital investments in processes and products must go hand
in hand with the investment in the people, to avoid the
risk of fearing new technologies and to add new skills and
increase competences. Clearly, people are central to this
constantly-evolving improvement process and thus we

Our Mission and Values

We have a relentless
commitment to excellence,
innovation & sustainability.
Our team creates, distributes
and services world-class power
transmission & drive solutions
to keep the world in motion.
foster innovation by holding re-qualification and
digital re-training courses specific to each role. In
2018, we spent a lot of time and resources analyzing how
the necessary skills are evolving and how to support this
transformation with training and retraining programs.
Our ultimate goal is technological and
human excellence, achieved in a sustainably
way and with the awareness that innovation
is made by the people, for the people.

At Bonfiglioli, everyday
work is driven by four main
values: challenge, respect,
accountability, winning together.

Challenge
We search for limits, then
overcome them through
innovative ideas, cuttingedge products, and unrivaled
performance.

Respect
We put our heart into everything
we do, to improve ourselves
and set an example for others,
because the efficiency of a team
begins with that of
the individuals in it.

Accountability
We explore different cultures,
religions, and experiences to
turn diversity into a resource and
pursue sustainable economic
growth in harmony with
the environment.

Winning Together
We foster talent to generate and
share the knowledge that
leads to success.

7

Annual Report 2018

8

9

Milestones

New
electromobility
plant in Forlì,
Italy

2008

1964

Work started
on the factory
at Lippo di
Calderara,
Bologna, Italy.
It is still our
headquarters
today

2000

1975

Trasmital
acquisition

1995

Debut of the
C, A, and F
series

2005

2002

We launched
our e-commerce
portal, MOSAICO

Organization
into business
units

Bonfiglioli
expands into
Slovakia

We launched
BEST, our
international
distribution
network

2010

2015

Sonia
Bonfiglioli
takes control of
the Group

Bonfiglioli
Vietnam Ltd. is
established in
Ho Chi Minh
City

Acquisition
of O&K
Antriebstechnik
GmbH

2012

Creation of the
Electromobility
Competence
Center

1956

2018

2017

Clementino
founded
Costruzioni
Meccaniche
Bonfiglioli

1993

1968

Tecnotrans
Bonfiglioli SA is
established in
Barcelona.
This was the
start of our
international
expansion

Certifications
DNV and TÜV

2001

1999

Inauguration
of the plant in
Chennai, India

Vectron
acquired

2006

2003

Tecnoingranaggi
acquired
Bonfiglioli Drives
is established in
Shanghai, China

Bonfiglioli
Turkey is
established

Expansion
of plants in
Slovakia and
Pune, India

2011

2009

Bonfiglioli
Brazil is
established

Inauguration
of the plant in
Mannur, India
BMR, our
mechatronics
research
center, is
established

2013

Bonfiglioli
South East
Asia opens in
Singapore

The path
toward digital
transformation
begins
New plant in
Chennai, India
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Global presence for local support
Thanks to an international network of sales branches and
closely interconnected production plants, we can guarantee
the same high standards of Bonfiglioli quality anywhere at
any given time. We know that our direct presence in local

markets is the key to long-lasting success, so our family
includes 21 sales branches, 14 production facilities and
more than 550 distributors around the world.

Our organization is always close by,
offering complete and efficient solutions
and supporting our customers with dedicated services,
co-engineering and after-sales assistance.

80
14

PLANTS

COUNTRIES

21

3.700

11

BRANCHES

EMPLOYEES

GERMANY
FRANCE

TURKEY

SPAIN
VIETNAM
UNITED KINGDOM

SOUTH AFRICA

USA

SLOVAKIA

BRAZIL

ITALY

INDIA

CHINA
SINGAPORE

AUSTRALIA

NEW ZEALAND

HEADQUARTERS

PRODUCTION
FACILITIES

BRANCHES
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Our Business Units

Discrete Manufacturing & Process Industries

In 2018 we have decided to rename our three business
units. In the last few years they have been evolving
to adapt to the market needs and anticipating new
trends. The new names better represent the company’s

leadership in the various market based on the deep
knowledge of the different needs required by our
customers allover the world.

The Discrete Manufacturing & Process Industries
business unit offers gearboxes, geared motors and
electric motors for any industrial applications. From
fractional power to a few hundred Kw, our experts
are able to address the most sophisticated requests for
applications working in all conditions.

That’s why each of our business units has the specific
know-how to support the growth of customers
in each specific sector.

Thanks to over 60 years of experience by our
customers’side, today we are able to anticipate their
needs in more than twenty different industries, focusing
on industrial processes and discrete manufacturing
machineries such as packaging, food & beverage,
mining, logistics and intralogistics.

Main sectors where we provide expertise
MECHATRONIC &
MOTION SYSTEMS

DISCRETE MANUFACTURING
& PROCESS INDUSTRIES

Discrete Manufacturing & Process Industries
Mechatronic & Motion Systems
Mobility & Wind Industries

MOBILITY & WIND
INDUSTRIES

D&P
33.7%
307.5 M€

MATERIAL
HANDLING

WASTE WATER
TREATMENT

BIOGAS

RUBBER AND
PLASTICS

MINING

METAL
PROCESSING

Other sectors:
ACCESS CONTROL
ASPHALT & OTHER AGGREGATES
COMMERCIAL HVAC & REFRIGERATION
LOGISTICS & STOCKING SYSTEMS
METAL PROCESSING & MACHINE TOOLS
OIL & GAS
POWER GENERATION
STONE, CLAY & GLASS

M&M
5.3%
48.7 M€
M&W
61%
556.8 M€

PACKAGING

RECYCLING

FOOD, BEVERAGE,
AND TOBACCO
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Annual Report 2018

14

Mobility & Wind Industries

Mechatronic & Motion Systems

The Mobility & Wind Industries business unit offers the
widest range of final drives available on the market
today. Its portfolio includes typical products such as
travel, slew, winch and cutter drives customizable for
any requirement.

With complete solutions dedicated to industrial processes and
automation, the Mechatronic & Motion Systems business unit
guarantees the improvement of its customers’profitability by
offering integrated systems comprising precision planetary
gearboxes, servomotors, open and closed loop inverters,
servo inverters, motion controllers and regenerative inverters.

The Mobility & Wind Industries team is the best partner
for enabling efficient, smart and resistant solutions
dedicated to the most complex applications in the
construction, wind, logistics, agriculture and marine &
offshore sectors. For over 30 years, the business unit
has been working alongside the most important OEMs
in the world.

Our experts shape solutions to supply the highest possible
level of precision, efficiency and energy optimization for
more than twenty industrial sectors such as material working,
logistics, intralogistics, robotics, packaging and textile.

Main sectors where we provide expertise

MATERIAL
HANDLING

MINING

FOOD,
BEVERAGE, AND
TOBACCO

TEXTILE

PACKAGING

Main sectors where we provide expertise

Mobile
Solutions

RUBBER AND
PLASTICS

Electromobility
Solutions

CONSTRUCTION

SMALL WIND TURBINE

CONCRETE MIXERS

MINING

UP TO 200kW

FORKLIFTS

EARTH MOVING

IN-LAND & OFFSHORE UP TO 8MW

MATERIAL HANDLING

AGRICULTURE
FORESTRY
DRILLING
MATERIAL HANDLING
WOOD
PROCESSING

Wind
Solutions

MARINE AND OFF-SHORE
ROAD CONSTRUCTION

A market share of over 30% in wind
turbine drives and supplies to leading
global players makes Bonfiglioli
the undisputed leader in the wind
industry. Four of our fourteen
production plants, based in Italy,
India, China and Brazil, are dedicated
to serve the wind industry and its
customers all over the world.

EQUIPMENT
AGRICULTURE
FORESTRY
LIGHTWEIGHT VEHICLES
AIRPORT GROUND
EQUIPMENT
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EVO,
laying the first stone
100% of O&K
Our new home for
electromobility:
Forlì - Italy
Expansion:
Chennai - India

2.

2018, highlights
of a record year

New products
IoT system solutions
Quality,
a constant ambition
People,
our strongest asset
Sonia Bonfiglioli
EY Entrepreneur
of the Year
A new way to
communicate

2018 was another record
year - the third in a row with total revenues of 913
million Euros and a
growth of approximately
13 percent on 2017.
In terms of regions, the emphasis has shifted further towards
China, India and the USA. Europe is still the most consolidated
market in terms of trends among various industries. Drives
for mobile equipment generated more than 45% of the total
turnover, while drives for wind turbines accounted for 13%
of the turnover. The remaining revenues were generated by
drives for industrial applications.
According to Fausto Carboni, Bonfiglioli Group CEO

“it’s been a very exciting year; the
3 year investment plan of 158 M€

and the strong commitment
of Bonfiglioli global team have
supported an extraordinary
growth, and, at the same time,

provided a solid foundation for
future development in term of
technologies, processes and
service.”

17

Annual Report 2018

18

EVO,
laying the first stone

100% of O&K

EVO is a new goal for significant transformation and
growth that we have developed over the past 10 years.
It lays the foundation for the Group’s competent leap
into digitalisation and realignment of its work and
production to Industry 4.0.

When it comes to the construction machinery sector,
in the last 2 years, Bonfiglioli has globally grown
6-7% faster than other companies on the market,
confirming itself as a global market leader in the
planetary gear technologies. USA, China and India
have cumulatively doubled revenues in the last 2 years. In
addition to their highly recognized quality standard, the
keys for the success is the widest product portfolio suitable
to a very broad applications range, the development of
co-engineered customized solutions and the recent O&K
integration.

This evolution is the result of a shared company culture and
a strong sense of belonging. This concept is the heart of
two years of work toward phasing out the plants in Vignola
and Calderara, in preparation for the new plant whose
cornerstone has being laid in April 2018.
EVO stands on the “Clementino Bonfiglioli” site at
Calderara di Reno, Italy, near Bologna, an area of 148,700
m2 whose usable surface amounts to 58,500 m2, and the
green area 56,000 m2. EVO welcomes the group business
unit dedicated to industrial power transmission, which
represents the Group’s traditional business. Focusing on
serving the industrial machinery market, which in recent
years has been enjoying a significant revival, the plant is
based on a strategic plan for all company functions. The
company’s ultimate ambitious goal is to re-position itself on
the global markets.
EVO, which stays for EVOlution, is first and foremost,
a cultural and technological innovation project, we aim
at sustainable growth based on the contribution of each
individual. The work environment is therefore a fundamental
key to success. EVO is designed around these principles, for
a digital revolution with people at the center of technology.

In our vision Industry 4.0
enables a better and more
efficient integration to
customer needs through
digitalized processes.

In fact, in 2018 we finalized the acquisition of O&K
Antriebstechnik GmbH in Hattingen, thereby making
Bonfiglioli the sole owner of the German company.
The leverage on the excellent market and product
complementarity between Bonfiglioli and O&K enabled a
very effective market response and produced very efficient
operative synergies since Bonfiglioli has taken over O&K
Antriebstechnik GmbH in late 2015. As matter of fact, in this
period, sales of the entire O&K branded products boosted
and the positive trend is expected to continue in 2019, also
thanks to new and more efficient products design and new
applications development in the marine and offshore fields.

19
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Our new home for electromobility:
Forlì - Italy

Expansion:
Chennai - India
In September 2018 Bonfiglioli Transmissions Pvt Ltd
- the Indian subsidiary of Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A.,
launched a new manufacturing facility in Chennai,
India, continuing the expansion in this region.

December 2018 saw an important development: we
launched a new environmentally-friendly production line
for electromobility in Forlì, Italy, with an area of around
10,000 square meters. Entirely dedicated to the production
of electrical axles for powertrain and wheel drives of
different sizes, the new production line was implemented
by adopting a wide range of Industry 4.0 technologies
and conceived with high level of flexibility, resulting into
the capability to manage 25,000 products per year of very
different shapes and sizes, with reduced machine set-up
times. The additional building is completely integrated into
the existing plant, which already produces approx. 300,000

The new 140,000-square-foot facility has been built
adjacent to the existing plant at the SIDCO Industrial Area in
Thirumudivakkam. It houses modern assembly lines, a global
R&D center and test labs, all built to the highest quality
and safety standards, consistent with Bonfiglioli locations
worldwide. With a capacity of 75,000 units per year, the
new facility will enable Bonfiglioli to serve existing and
new markets and customers in off-highway, construction,
mining, agriculture and material handling applications.
“This new and innovative unit looks to
the future and consolidates one of our
main strategic pillars - the development of
electromobility solutions - by leveraging
the existing decade-old competence
center we have in Forlì, focused on mobile
equipment”, said Fausto Carboni, Bonfiglioli
Group CEO, during the conference organized to present
the new plant to the press and the local instutions.
The implementation of Industry 4.0 technologies developed
through collaborative robots, AGV, sensors, machine vision
systems, interactive working instruction systems and full
data connection systems, allows an extreme optimization
of the entire production process. Innovative testing benches
- such as the double vibration test - guarantee high quality
product consistency.

products per year. With a total of 39,000 square meters
dedicated to production, this facility already serves 200
customers in the construction, wind, agriculture, marine
and logistics & intralogistics industries, with a wide product
portfolio including yaw and pitch drives, wheel drives, track
drives, slew drives and winch drives.

Flexibility has also been one of the main criteria the assembly
line was conceived with, resulting into the capability to
manage 25,000 products per year, from 70 kg to 1,200 kg
with reduced machine set-up times.
Thanks to this new plant we can support our customers
with innovative and top quality solutions for electrical and
hybrid industrial and commercial vehicles.

This new investment is part of a wider expansion plan
for India, which includes the existing facility in Chennai
and a plant in Mannur, located close to Sriperumbudur,
both focused on making gearboxes and gearmotors for
mobile machinery, wind turbines and industrial processes.
Meanwhile, the recently opened assembly plant in
Pune, western India, provides 90,000 units per year,
serving customers in the food, packaging, cement, steel,
pharmaceutical, textile, material handling, sugar, power
generation, paper and water treatment sectors.
The main target of our expansion plan in
India is the significant increase in production
capacity to serve this continuously growing
market and to take advantage of the
enormous opportunities it offers.
We have believed strongly and with foresight in this
country since 1999 with the first plant in Chennai and we
will continue to invest important resources in this big and
friendly country.
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New products
Motion Control

High performance multi-axis control for the complete automation of the
industrial movement.
The new ranges of solutions for Bonfiglioli’s Motion Control BMC, BMV, BMX,
with relative BMotion and BView configuration software packages, represent
the natural completion of the vast and consolidated product range specifically
for industrial movement control for high dynamic and precision applications.

The BSR reluctance synchronous motors

610X wheel drive series with electric motor
A dedicated solution for hybrid backhoe loaders.

The 610X, designed and developed by Bonfiglioli, has been
specifically created for hybrid backhoe loaders. Bonfiglioli 610X
is a 2-speed hydraulically-operated drive, with dynamic electronic
speed shifting and with integrated parking and service brake. This
compact and complete solution allows a perfect optimization of
the electric motor, which, thanks to the integrated speed shift,
always operates at the range speed that guarantees its maximum
efficiency.

Tigon Machine Application

High efficiency and high power density, a money-saving green investment.
The new range of Bonfiglioli BSR reluctance synchronous motors can reach the IE4 efficiency class
using the same cut as the IE2 class induction standard motors. Alternatively, on a par as regards
cutting and in this case also efficiency, it can distribute twice as much power compared to the
corresponding induction motor. For both solutions, the motor control proposed by Bonfiglioli
via the Active Cube series actuators has no sensor, that is, without the use of speed or position
feedback. Bonfiglioli has developed two packages: one “High Efficiency” with IE4 efficiency class
and one “High Power Density”.
The combination of the Active Cube vectorial control with the BSR motors represents the ideal
solution for a variety of applications, such as pumps, ventilators, mixers and dosing systems.

705XT track drives with integrated axial piston motor

The new compact track drives dedicated to construction equipment
machines.
Bonfiglioli 705XT track drives perfectly combine proven mechanical systems
with ground-breaking hydraulic components, and represent the best choice
for closed-loop applications and demanding construction equipment
machines, such as compact track loaders (5.5 to 7.5 tons), small dozers (5.5
to 7.5 tons) or pavers (12 to 15 tons).
The Bonfiglioli 705XT track drive with integrated Th68 axial piston motor
is an intermediate solution developed in order to offer a cost-effective
solution to our customers, more suitable to their machines requirements.

DGM

The decentralised solution for asynchronous motors that integrate motor, gearbox
and inverter.
The new DGM Bonfiglioli actuator platform is a complete and flexible solution developed
for the variable speed applications. The DGM integrates the renowned range of 4 pole
asynchronous motors and Bonfiglioli gearboxes with the new inverter installed on the motor.
DGM offers machine or plant manufacturers and users numerous advantages: reduction in
installation times and the risk of error, reduction of volumetrics and cooling system, expansion
opportunities Reduction of cabling costs, increase in service life.

Compact track loaders application

605WE wheel drive series with electric motor

711C 2 B series

The 605WE wheel drive, designed and developed by Bonfiglioli, has been
created in cooperation with one of our customer for a new innovative
hybrid aerial platform.
Bonfiglioli 605WE, which provides an output torque of up to 10.000
Nm, is a 3-stage gearbox with a fully-integrated 8kW electric motor and
parking brake that guarantees maximum efficiency and compact size. The
integration of all the components in an optimized space gives the machine
builder the opportunity to benefit from a cost-effective solution easy to
maintain. Thanks to the direct-mounting flange, it is also easy to install.
The 605WE series perfectly adapt to both hybrid and electric applications.

Thanks to its compact dimensions, the 711C 2
B new coaxial planetary drive, which provides
an output torque of up to 25.000 Nm, allows
a perfect fitting inside the winch drum. This
design is a lighter and more cost-effective
solution compared to the standard one. The
711C 2 B oil seals, gears profile and bearings
are robust and produce less vibration, thus
offering a durable and reliable solution.

The new coaxial planetary drive dedicated
solution for winches.

A robust and compact solution for hybrid aerial platforms.

Lift Applications

Winch drive for building crane application

23
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IoT
system solutions

Quality,
a constant ambition

Bonfiglioli predictive maintenance system
We developed ready to use and tailored IoT solutions
to maximize the productivity and the efficiency of our
customers’ machines. From application engineering to

Our system is particularly
relevant for all
applications where early
fault detection is critical
in increasing reliability
as well as lowering
operational costs,
maintenance costs and
reducing downtimes.

condition monitoring and data collection, we support clients
in making data valuable and speed up their development.

Bonfiglioli IoT system solutions are focused on raising productivity
and improving the efficiency of our customers’ machines.

MONITORING HEALTH PARAMETERS

MONITORING RESIDUAL USEFUL LIFE

Gearbox damages

Current torque

Oil aging

Temperature

Oil

Speed

System certifications

Product certifications
STANDARD DRIVE
INVERTERS

REAL TIME DATA
ACQUISITION:
PRESSURE

EDGE
COMPUTER
ALGORITHMS

INTEGRATED OR
CABLE SENSORS

In addition, our management systems are certified ISO
14001: 2015 and OHSAS 18001: 2007, while our products
are covered by 7 international certifications.
BONFIGLIOLI DASHBOARD
MACHINE PERFORMANCE

TORQUE
POWER

MONITORING

SPEED

ENERGY MONITORING

VIBRATION

CONDITION MONITORING

TEMPERATURE

PREDICTIVE MAINTENANCE

The IoT solutions currently developed concern the following applications:

WIND
TURBINE

AUTOMATIC
STORAGE

PALLETIZING
MACHINE

FORKLIFT

Bonfiglioli is committed to achieve the highest quality
standards and our products are intended to generate
value for our customers while respecting both people
and environment. During 2018, the Quality Management
System Certification was renewed according to ISO 9001:
2015, extending and consolidating the approach to Risk
Based Thinking and including the Pune plant in India within
the group certificate.

MINING
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People,
our strongest asset

Sonia Bonfiglioli
EY Entrepreneur of the Year
In November 2018 Sonia Bonfiglioli, Chairwoman of
Bonfiglioli, won the XXII edition of the EY Entrepreneur
of the Year® award in Italy.

Bonfiglioli Digital Re-Training

At Bonfiglioli, we believe that people are at the heart
of technology and are the decisive factor behind the
digital revolution. That’s why in 2018 we intensified
the training activities.
The Generational Re-Training Program was launched,
involving 760 people for more than 16,000 total hours of
training provided.

to create the Manufacturing Excellence Academy 4.0
starting in January 2019.
Finally, we have signed a new partnership with CEIBS
of Shanghai, considered among the top ranked business
schools in China and which is added to those already
existing with IESE (Navarra, Spain) and ESCP (Paris, France).

The Bonfiglioli Digital Re-Training pilot project was
completed with the aim of initiating the up-skill process of
the people in Evo and reached an average of 170 hours per
person involved. The course was composed of a technical
training on topics such as cybersecurity and cloud, sensing
tools, manufacturing 4.0 and on a cultural part with
themes such as learning Agility, Change Management,
Communication 4.0, etc.

“Bonfiglioli, since my childhood,
has always been part of my life
and even today I like to live the company
with the same curiosity as when my father
used to take me there and with the same
passion as when I chose to work there.

The success of this project has led the company to extend
this training method to all the people working in EVO and

Our skills development method for Industry 4.0 reflects our culture
IDENTIFICATION OF
USE CASES

IDENTIFICATION OF
KEY ROLES

TRAINING

L
NICA

TECH

ON
BOARDING
NEW
TECHNOLOGIES

This important recognition is reserved to Italian entrepreneurs
who have been able to create value with an innovative
spirit and a strategic vision, thereby contributing to the
growth of the economy. Sonia Bonfiglioli was recognized
as Entrepreneur of the Year for having established a worldwide presence for the Group with determination and
tenacity, making it one of the most important companies
in its sector; able to take on and face today’s challenges by
promoting research and innovation, while always focusing
on the human factor.

SKILLS 4.0
GAPS

URAL
CULT

Today the Bonfiglioli Group has grown,
and 80% of our products are used outside
national borders; this is why this award is
first of all the recognition to 3,700 people
worldwide who have contributed and
participated in the company development,
with talent and commitment.
But I would like to dedicate it
to the many companies,
especially small ones, and to their people
whose work is often invisible,
which constitute that heritage of initiative,
creativity and inventiveness that make our
country unique.
They are the engine and strength of
yesterday and tomorrow, which we must
support and make grow for.”

27

Annual Report 2018

28

A new way to communicate
In 2018 we started a process of renewal of the
corporate image paying particular attention to the
web.
With the aim of reaching more and more targets and
improving the customer experience of our communication
channels, among the various actions undertaken, we have

29

Fairs layout
completely renewed our website and invested important
resources in the management of social media. We have
also revisited all the graphic concept of the way we present
ourselves in trade fairs, always maintaining our strong
corporate identity.

The website

Linkedin

Mekatronik Uygulamalardaki
Uzman Partneriniz ve Çözüm
Ortağınız Bonfiglioli
Ziyaretinizi Bekliyoruz
Salon / Stand : Hall 2 - C150
Bonfiglioli, Etkili, Yenilikçi ve Güvenilir
Çözümler Sunar.
Güç Aktarma Çözümleri ve Hareket Kontrol
sistemlerindeki 50 yılı aşkın tecrübesiyle,
Endüstriyel Otomasyon dünyasında üstün bir
saygınlığa sahiptir.

www.bonfiglioli.com

Win Eurasia 2019
14-17 Mart
Istanbul, Türkiye

Salon/Hall 2 - Stand C150

Web Advertising
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3.

Aiming to
Sustainability

Bonfiglioli have embraced sustainability as a
philosophy which grants a great future to the company
and to any stakeholder.
Ethics is an essential value for us and we consider the
environment and the surrounding communities an high
priority.
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Giving children a chance
for a better future
We have chosen to support initiatives addressed to young
people and technologies. Because young people are the
future of the world and understanding and mastering

Supporting
culture and health
technological evolution offers everyone the tools to face the
world of tomorrow.

India

A bridge between
school and real life
Leonardo Committee

Bonfiglioli supports the Emilia Romagna
Epilepsy Association (AEER) in a pilot project
that monitors and treats young patients with
cognitive and emotional dysfunctions.

Clementino Bonfiglioli Prize, named after our
company’s founder, is awarded to young people who
demonstrate excellence in their studies and complete a
degree thesis relevant to industrial automation, power
transmission and control or innovative mechatronics.

The boys’ and girls’ homes welcome disadvantaged
children, giving them the opportunity to live together
in a protected environment, receive an education and
learn vocational skills that prepare them for higher
education or entry into the labor market.

Italy

Vietnam
School in Ho Chi Minh City provides free education for
children from poor and socially deprived homes.

Cinema Modernissimo: attentive to local art
and cultural heritage, Bonfiglioli contributes to
the restoration of the Modernissimo cinema, in
Palazzo Ronzani in Bologna.

South
Africa
St. Mary’s School in Johannesburg provides a top-class
education for talented, underprivileged young girls, to
preparing them to become responsible citizens in a challenging
world.

MUS-E Musique Europe is a European
multicultural project for primary schools that
welcome many immigrant children or those with
serious socio-economic or cultural hardships.

Malpighi La.B is the robotics, IT and 3D design
laboratory dedicated to Clementino Bonfiglioli is open
to all students in Bologna, where they can put their
skills to the test, experiment and cultivate their ideas,
in contact with the world of business and research.
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The group as of December 31st, 2018
EMEA

APAC

OTHER
COMPANIES

AME

Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.a.

100%

BONFIGLIOLI
ITALIA S.P.A.

100%

ITALY

100%

BONFIGLIOLI MECHATRONIC
RESEARCH S.P.A.

100%

SLOVAKIA

100%

BONFIGLIOLI
TRANSMISSION S.A.

100%

100%

BONFIGLIOLI SOUTH AFRICA
PTY LTD

100%

O&K
ANTRIEBSTECHNIK GMBH

USA

73,82%

BONFIGLIOLI TRANSMISSION
(AUST.) PTY LTD.

BONFIGLIOLI REDUTORES DO BRASIL
INDUSTRIA E COMERCIO LTDA
BRAZIL

BONFIGLIOLI
SOUTH EAST ASIA PTE LTD
SINGAPORE

GERMANY

100%

BONFIGLIOLI
UK LTD.

BONFIGLIOLI
VIETNAM Ltd.
VIETNAM

10%

TECNOTRANS
BONFIGLIOLI SA

BONFIGLIOLI
TRANSMISSION PVT LTD.

100%

BONFIGLIOLI
VECTRON GMBH

2,48%

INDIA

GERMANY

100%

B.E.S.T.
HELLAS SA
GREECE

97,52%

BONFIGLIOLI
DEUTSCHLAND GMBH
GERMANY

BONFIGLIOLI
USA INC.

AUSTRALIA

SPAIN

100%

100%

CHINA

UNITED KINGDOM

95%

CANADA

BONFIGLIOLI TRADING
(SHANGHAI) Co. Ltd.

SOUTH AFRICA

FRANCE

100%

100%

BONFIGLIOLI POWER
TRANSMISSION PTY LTD.

75%

BONFIGLIOLI
CANADA INC.

CHINA

SOUTH AFRICA

BONFIGLIOLI
SLOVAKIA s.r.o.

100%

BONFIGLIOLI DRIVES
(SHANGHAI) CO. LTD.

TURKEY

ITALY

100%

83,33%

BONFIGLIOLI POWER TRANSMISSIONS
& AUTOMATION TECHNOLOGIES JSC

BONFIGLIOLI RENEWABLE POWER
CONVERSION INDIA Pvt. Ltd.
INDIA
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Organization chart
CHAIRWOMAN

CORPORATE PUBLIC
RELATIONS OFFICE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CEO OFFICE

ADMINISTRATION,
FINANCE & CONTROL
HUMAN RESOURCES & ORGANIZATION
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
& DIGITAL
CORPORATE AFFAIRS
& INTERNAL AUDIT
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGIC MARKETING &
COMMUNICATION
STRATEGIC PURCHASING
PROPERTY

Board of Directors

QUALITY & HEALTH SAFETY
ENVIRONMENT

BUSINESS UNIT
DISCRETE MANUFACTURING &
PROCESS INDUSTRIES
CHINA
INDIA

BUSINESS UNIT
MECHATRONIC & MOTION
SYSTEMS

Chairwoman • Sonia Bonfiglioli
Vice Chairwoman • Luisa Lusardi
CEO • Fausto Carboni
Director • Luciano Bonfiglioli
Director • Roberto Megna
Director • Tommaso Tomba
Director • Roberto Carlo Testore
Director • Giampiero Bergami

BUSINESS UNIT
MOBILITY & WIND
INDUSTRIES

Statutory Auditors

Chairman • Alessandro Gualtieri
Member • Monica Marisaldi
Member • Ruggero Mazza

Independent Auditors

PriceWaterhouseCoopers S.p.A.

NORTH AMERICA
FRANCE
GERMANY
SPAIN
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8.7%

Financial Highlights
(*) EBITDA
values of 2014
recalculated
coherently
with new OIC
principles.

653.9

2014

730.1

2015

788.9

2016

808.4

2017

56.7

62.1

2014

2015

913.0

2018

8.5%

9.5%

10.9%
87.8

74.6

2016

2017

11.0%
100.5

2018

EBITDA (euro / million - % on turnover)
231.6

240.0

260.7

270.1

2014

2015

2016

2017

Group Sales (euro / million)

301.8

2018

Group Shareholders’ Equity (euro / million)
158.3

653.9
142.5 APAC
135.2 AME
376.2 EMEA

2014

730.1

788.9

808.4

913.0

186.7 APAC

157.8 AME

155.6 AME

148.2 AME

422.4 EMEA

446.6 EMEA

454.0 EMEA

487.0 EMEA

2015

2016

2017

2018

2014

1,214 APAC

162 AME

38.9

2015

2015

2016

2017

2018
4,042

66.6

2014

119.0

Net Cash Position (Ncp) (euro / million)
3,478

20.6

110.8

166.0 AME

Sales by geographical area (euro / million)

21.4

133.3

260.0 APAC

206.2 APAC

149.9 APAC

121.0

2,102 EMEA

3,651

3,632

1,164 APAC

1,133 APAC

1,075 APAC

183 AME

176 AME

179 AME

2,304 EMEA

2,323 EMEA

2,377 EMEA

2015

2016

2017

3,631

1,232 APAC

192 AME
2,618 EMEA

28.8

2016

2017

Net Capital Expenditure (euro / million)

2018

2014

Number Of Employees

2018
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Foreword
This Management Report, drawn up in compliance with
the provisions of Legislative Decree 139 of 18 August 2015
implementing Directive 2013/34/EU and in conformity
to the national accounting principles issued by the OIC
(Italian Accounting Organisation) updated by amendments
published on 29 January 2019, in force for financial

statements starting from 1 January 2018 or from following
dates, is submitted as a comment on the results recorded
in the consolidated financial statements of the Bonfiglioli
Group.
Unless otherwise indicated, data are shown in Euro/millions.

Reference economic situation
During 2018 the world economy, net of the slowdowns
recorded in the European and Asian economies, generally
presented a growth which was identical to the previous year
(+3.7%, according to the recent estimations of the International
Monetary Fund), while showing a clear weakening in the
second six-month period.
In the opinion of the analysts, various elements led to this
contraction: increasing trade tensions, the geopolitical risks
in the Middle East and the increasingly protectionist attitude
of the US politics are the main factors which had a negative
impact on global trade trends.
This framework was further aggravated by the changing credit
conditions in emerging economies, which had repercussions
on local GDP, further aggravating the global trade trends.
The last part of 2018 was also marked by significant losses in
stock indexes, already conditioned by the expected slowdown
in the economic cycle.
In the United States the positive growth trend (+2.9%),
supported by the increase in public expenditure and the
reduction in taxes, was maintained constant throughout
the year. However, the unfavourable global trend negatively
affected performances in the last few months of 2018.
The same dynamics affected the end-of-year performance in
China, where economic growth continued at fast rhythms for
the whole of 2018 (+6.6%), driven by the economic policies
of the government.
Extremely significant was the Yuan depreciation policy,
implemented also following the trade tensions between
China and the United States, which could have a negative
implemented on China’s key partners, starting from the other
Asian countries.
In the Eurozone, the drop in expansion rhythm was greater
than expected (+2.0%, compared to 2.4% in the previous
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year), with a marked effect in the last quarter.
Despite this, the labour market recorded an improvement in
the employment rate, continuing on the trend of the last five
years.
GDP trends continue to show considerable deviations between
the countries in the Eurozone. Germany recorded a significant
drop on the previous year (+1.9% compared to 2.5% in 2017),
with pessimistic prospects for 2019, which forecast a significant
slowdown for the economy which had been shown to be solid
during the years of the global crisis, and which could seriously
affect the economies of the other countries in the area. The
slowdown in the German economy was triggered by several
factors, one being the regulation on the emissions tests for
new cars, with stricter regulations which led to a contraction
in this sector which is fundamental for the German economy.
Particularly serious was the fall in export sales, worsened by the
aforementioned trade tensions between China and the United
States and the problems linked to Brexit, with considerable
repercussions for an economy which bases almost half of
its GDP on exports and whose key commercial partners are
China, the USA and the United Kingdom.
In France, affected by a period of social instability, the economic
trends fell compared to the previous year (+1.6% compared to
+2.3% in 2017).
As regards the United Kingdom (+1.4%), this country is affected
by the uncertainties linked to the prolonged negotiations over
Brexit and the prospect of leaving the EU without a deal. The
fear of a “no deal” is worrying both for the strength of the
GBP and the consequences on the industrial system, as this
eventuality would force businesses to face additional costs and
new customs restrictions.
In terms of currency, in addition to the aforementioned
dynamics of the Chinese Yuan, 2018 was marked by the

progressive appreciation of the US Dollar, favoured both by
the solidity of the US economy, set off against the slowdown
in the Euro area, and by the announcement by the ECB of
the interest rates until summer 2019, which contributed to
depreciating the Euro in the second half of the year.
In Italy, the economy recorded a fall in growth compared to the
previous year (1.2%, compared to 1.5% in 2017), particularly
severe in the second half of 2018, with the last ISTAT data
confirming the country’s entry into technical recession during
the fourth quarter.
The low growth rates, which are confirmed lower than
the main Eurozone economies, is due both to the abovementioned external factors, which negatively affected the
export dynamics, and to internal factors.
In particular, it was affected by the prolonged institutional
uncertainty following the national elections in March 2018
and, after the formation of the new government, the
subsequent economic policies which generated worries on the
financial markets and a prolonged period of tension with the
European institutions concerning the compatibility with the
economic and financial convergence criteria of the EU.
These factors led to a temporary weakening of investor
faith and an increase in the spread of public debt securities
compared to German ones.

In terms of employment, an increase in the employment rates
was recorded, although the growth concerns exclusively fixedterm employees, while after four years a drop in permanent
employment contracts was recorded.
As regards industrial production, the data show a trend that
has been worsening since the start of 2018, with production
volumes dropping constantly according to the ISTAT indices.
The engineering sector, which recorded a 2.8% increase in
production, shows a lower fall than the rest of the industrial
sector, even though it recorded negative dynamics, particularly
in the steel industry and car production.
For 2019 the International Monetary Fund, in its World
Economic Outlook for January, estimated a growth in world
GDP of 3.5%, after 3.7% in 2017 and 3.6% in 2018. Among
the emerging countries, a slowdown can be seen in the
Chinese economy, with expected growth of just over 6% in
2019.
Concerning the medium term prospects, recently revised
downwards, the continuing trade tariff war between the
United States and China is taking its toll along with the
difficulties in the German economy and the uncertainties
linked to Brexit, as well as the worries of the Italian economy’s
financial risks and the public debt.

Area of consolidation
As of 31st December 2018, the consolidation area includes,
along with the parent company, twenty-three controlled
companies representing the following manufacturing and
industrial organisation:

• 14 production plants (4 in Italy, 3 in India, 2 in Germany
and 1 each in China, the United States, Brazil, Slovakia and
Vietnam) covering various areas of the extensive Bonfiglioli
product range;
• directly controlled commercial companies in 15 countries,
covering development, marketing and sales, logistics,
customisation and final assembly of the Group’s products,
pre-sales and after-sales assistance and customer support.
With reference to the consolidation area, the following
changes took place during the year 2018 (see the Notes for

further details):

• Merger of the company Bonfiglioli Vectron MDS GmbH into
Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH with tax and accounting effects
back-dated to 1 January 2018
• Decrease to cover losses and subsequent capital increase
paid into the Brazilian subsidiary, completed in February. The
capital increase was paid by Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A. and
SIMEST S.p.A. which, following the transaction, acquired a
share of 26.18%
• Purchase by minority shareholders in July of the remaining
16.25% of the capital of Bonfiglioli Power Transmission Pty
Ltd (South Africa) at a total cost of 2.6 M€
• Purchase by minority shareholders on 20.11.2018 of the
remaining 4.5% of the capital of O&K Antriebstechnik
GmbH (Germany) at a total cost of 17 M€.
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Analysis of 2018 results

Values

In keeping with Art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, the layouts
for the Balance Sheet and Income Statement are set out
below, reclassified with regard to the last years’ operations by
the Group.

The layouts presented hereunder show figures in millions of
Euros and in percentage, as well as main economic-financial
indicators.

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT

2018

2017

2016

2018

2017

2016

TURNOVER

913.0

808.4

788.9

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

COST OF SALES

(695.9)

(612.9)

(605.3)

(76.2%)

(75.8%)

(76.7%)

GROSS MARGIN

217.1

195.6

183.6

23.8%

24.2%

23.3%

STRUCTURE AND OPERATING EXPENSES

(153.9)

(145.0)

(145.9)

(16.9%)

(17.9%)

(18.5%)

EBIT

63.2

50.5

37.7

6.9%

6.3%

4.8%

Financial income (and expenses)

(6.0)

(6.2)

(7.6)

(0.7%)

(0.8%)

(1.0%)

Exchange rate differences

(1.0)

(5.6)

3.3

(0.1%)

(0.7%)

0.4%

Dividends, incomes and charges
from securities valuation

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

EBT

56.5

38.7

33.3

6.2%

4.8%

Taxes

(18.9)

(14.3)

(19.3)

(2.1%)

CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME

37.6

24.4

14.0

Minority

(0.2)

(0.9)

NET GROUP PROFIT

37.4

23.5

47

Rotation (*)

2018

2017

2016

2018

2017

2016

Net working capital

246.1

219.6

212.8

97

98

97

Fixed assets

271.9

220.8

217.0

107

98

99

Other invested capital

(49.0)

(43.9)

(51.5)

(19)

(20)

(23)

Minority

(8.9)

(7.5)

(6.9)

(3)

(3)

(3)

CAPITAL EMPLOYED

460.1

389.0

371.4

181

173

169

Group Shareholders’ equity

301.8

270.1

260.7

119

120

119

Net Cash Position (NCP)

158.3

119.0

110.8

62

53

51

FUNDS

460.1

389.0

371.4

181

173

169

BALANCE SHEET

(*) average turnover rotation days (base 360)
Values

% of turnover

2018

2017

2016

2018

2017

2016

EMEA

487.0

454.0

446.6

53.3%

56.2%

56.6%

4.2%

AME

166.0

148.2

155.6

18.2%

18.3%

19.7%

(1.8%)

(2.4%)

APAC

260.0

206.2

186.7

28.5%

25.5%

23.7%

4.1%

3.0%

1.8%

TOTAL TURNOVER

913.0

808.4

788.9

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

4.5

0.0%

(0.1%)

0.6%

18.5

4.1%

2.9%

2.3%

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

Values
INDICATORS

2018

2017

2016

2018

2017

2016

PERSONNEL COSTS

(171.9)

(162.6)

(157.8)

(18.8%)

(20.1%)

(20.0%)

AMORTIS., DEPREC., WRITE-DOWNS
AND PROVISIONS

(37.3)

(37.3)

(36.9)

(4.1%)

(4.6%)

(4.7%)

EBITDA

100.5

87.8

74.6

11.0%

10.9%

9.5%

DESCRIPTION

2018

2017

2016

Net ROE

12.4%

8.7%

7.1%

(Net profit/Shareholders' equity)

ROI

13.7%

13.0%

10.1%

(EBIT/Capital Employed)

ROS

6.9%

6.3%

4.8%

(EBIT/Turnover)

EBITDA/Net Financial charges

16.8

14.2

9.8

Primary structural balance ratio

1.1

1.2

1.2

(Shareholders’ equity/Fixed assets)

Financial indebtedness ratio

0.5

0.4

0.4

(NCP/Shareholders’ equity)

NCP/EBITDA ratio

1.6

1.4

1.5

(NCP/EBITDA)

Shareholders' equity tangibility ratio

0.8

0.9

0.9

(Equity-Intangible assets / Equity)

3,899

3,721

3,710

Annual mean

234

217

213

Data in thousands of Euro

ECONOMIC

EQUITY AND STRUCTURAL

OTHER
Average number of employees
Turnover per employee
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To uniform its different business models, different technologies
and the different sectors served, in 2018 the Group changed
the name of its own Business Units:
• from Mobile & Wind Solutions “MWS” to Mobility & Wind
Industries “M&W”
• from Power Transmission Solutions “PTS” to Discrete
Manufacturing & Process Industries “D&P”
• from Mechatronic Drives & Solutions “MDS” to Mechatronic
& Motion Systems “M&M”.
Laying the first stone, during the official ceremony in April
2018, construction works began for the EVO project to
be implemented in the “Clementino Bonfiglioli” sector in
Calderara di Reno and, once the works are finished, it will
represent the Group’s largest industrial site, with an area of
148,700 sq.m. with a covered surface area of 58,500 sq.m.
and a green area of 56,000 sq.m. The EVO will house the D&P
Business Unit for industrial power drives.
In view of this project, the process of synchronisation of the
activities of the two production sites in Vignola and Calderara di
Reno has continued, within an in-depth process of relaunching
this historical business, built around a strategic plan involving
all company functions with the aim of repositioning on global
markets.
Within the Group’s process of development in the mechatronics
area and in Industry 4.0, in July 2018 works began for the
construction of a new plant to be rented to Bonfiglioli
Mechatronic Research S.p.a., aiming to complete the works by
mid-2019 in order to implement a pole able to attract further
investments in technologies.
In September 2018 the Indian subsidiary “Bonfiglioli
Transmissions Pvt Ltd” inaugurated the new production
plant in Chennai. Measuring 13,000 sq.m. with a production
capacity of 75,000 units per year, the new production site
stands next to the existing plant, housing modern assembly
lines, an R&D centre and testing laboratories, all built to the
highest standards of efficiency, quality and safety.
In October 2018, Bonfiglioli and CVTCORP, world leader in the
design and development of continuous transmissions (mCVT)
for the “off-highway” market, announced the signature of
an exclusive licensing agreement for the production and sale
of CVTCORP mCVT patented technology. The cooperation
between Bonfiglioli and CVTCORP will also include the
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development of a complete transmission line based on the
mCVT which is currently available. This licensing agreement
includes the transfer of the production of the Ecomec 150,
used in the “Skyjack Ecoshift”.
In November 2018 the Group received an important award.
Sonia Bonfiglioli is the national winner of the XXII edition of
the “L’Imprenditore dell’Anno” Award (Businessman of the
Year). The Award, given for the very first time to a woman,
is reserved for Italian businessmen at the helm of companies
with over 25 million EUR turnover who have created value
with an innovative spirit and a strategic vision, contributing
to the growth of the economy. According to the panel of
judges, Sonia Bonfiglioli is businesswoman of the year, “for
having led the Group, founded by her father in 1956, with
determination and tenacity, affirming it as one of the most
important companies in its sector worldwide; able to welcome
and manage the challenges dictated by the times, promoting
research and innovation, placing the human factor in the
centre every time”.
Again in November 2018 Bonfiglioli and Carraro completed
the process which began in November 2015 by purchasing the
remaining of share capital of “O&K Antriebstechnik GmbH”
which is now therefore fully controlled by the Bonfiglioli
Group. The strategic rationale and the cooperation mechanism
underlying the agreement signed in 2015 have in the past
three years led to an increase in sales in the O&K business
segment from 36 M€ to over 70 M€ at the end of 2018.
At the plant in Forlì, the historical headquarters of the BU
M&W, in December 2018 a new structure of 10,000 sq.m. was
inaugurated, for productions devoted to the strategic sector of
electromobility and the sustainable future, with a building with
low environmental impacts equipped with photovoltaic panels
and energy recovery systems.
Last but not least, we should remember that, after a year
of works, in January 2018 Sonia Bonfiglioli and CEO Fausto
Carboni officially inaugurated CheerFutureRoseLand, the
community housing project that will house around 50 young
girls in a protected environment where they can receive
education and support, preparing them for the future.
The CheerFutureLand Project was started by the founder
Clementino Bonfiglioli in 2008 to support orphans and
children from families in hardship in the Chennai area where

Bonfiglioli opened its plants. 10 years later, more than 80
young people have had the chance to receive an education
and learn the professional skills needed to guarantee them
a better future. The Group continues its commitment to this
important heritage and, one year ago, Sonia decided to build
a new home for girls, to offer them the same opportunities,
without any gender distinction.
The Group turnover in 2018 recorded an increase compared
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to the previous financial year of 12.9% in percentage terms
(913.0 M€ compared to 808.4 M€ in 2017), thanks to the
particularly positive performance of all the Business Units,
particularly M&W (+16.3%) and D&P (+8.0%).
For a better understanding of turnover dynamics at Business
Unit level, figures for the last three years are presented in the
following table.

Values

% of turnover

TURNOVER BY BUSINESS UNIT

2018

2017

2016

2018

2017

2016

D&P

307.5

284.6

262.5

33.7%

35.2%

33.3%

M&M

48.7

44.1

35.6

5.3%

5.5%

4.5%

M&W

556.8

478.9

471.2

61.0%

59.2%

59.7%

-

0.8

19.6

0.0%

0.1%

2.5%

913.0

808.4

788.9

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

PV
TOTAL TURNOVER

The Consolidated Income Statement records Group earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
as 100.5 M€, equivalent to 11.0% of turnover, a strong
improvement on the previous year (+12.7 M€) in absolute
value and substantially stable in percentage terms (+.01%).
It should also be noted that:
• Cost of sales for 2018 came to 76.2% of turnover. The
decrease in marginality compared to 2017 (-0.4%) is mainly
due to the mix of products which saw an increase in turnover
of M&W products with lower marginality;
• Structural and operating expenses fell by an absolute
figure of 8.9 M€, however recording an improvement in
percentage of turnover (16.9% compared to 17.9% last
year);
• Total cost of labour rose from 162.6 M€ to 171.9 M€, with
an improvement in terms of percentage of turnover (18.8%
compared to 20.1% last year);
• Amortisation, depreciation and other provisions remain
unchanged compared to the previous year, with an
improvement in percentage of turnover (4.1% compared to
4.6% last year);

• The net financial charges and income in absolute value
recorded a slight decrease (6.0 M€ compared to 6.2
M€ in 2017), with the percentage of turnover remaining
substantially unchanged (0.7% in 2018 compared to 0.8%
in 2017);
• The change dynamics led to losses of 1.0M€, with a clear
improvement on the previous year due to both a more stable
change dynamics and a better hedging strategy operated
among all the companies in the Group.
With regard to the Group’s assets and liabilities, Net Working
Capital rose in absolute value from 219.6 M€ to 246.1 M€
while remaining substantially unchanged in terms of rotation
on sales (from 98 to 97 average rotation days).
The Net Cash Position (NCP) recorded an increase in absolute
value of indebtedness (from 119 M€ in December 2017 to
158.3 M€ in December 2018), against both the increase
recorded at NWC level and the investments made during the
year, recording a slight increase in leverage which settled at the
end of 2018 on an indicator of 1.6 (1.4 at end 2017).
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Risk management

Net investments amount to 66.6 M€. Details are given below:
Values in M€

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Land and buildings

15.8

9.3

1.9

9.8

(0.5)

Plant and machinery

24.5

7.4

12.0

8.4

4.1

Equipment

12.1

7.9

7.6

3.8

8.7

Other assets

3.4

2.6

2.6

1.6

1.3

Current fixed assets

3.7

8.6

1.2

(5.3)

6.0

Tangible fixed assets

59.5

35.8

25.3

18.3

19.6

Licences, trade marks, patents

2.5

1.7

1.5

0.8

0.7

Other

4.6

1.4

2.0

1.5

1.1

Intangible fixed assets

7.1

3.1

3.5

2.3

1.8

Total Investments

66.6

38.9

28.8

20.6

21.4

In addition to the investments described above, as explained
in the NCP Financial statement given at the end of the Notes
to consolidated financial statements, are 17 M€ related to
the completion of the O&K acquisition.
The Group’s main investments in 2018 are described below:
• investments in land and buildings concerned mainly the
Parent Company (7.7 M€) for the enlargement of the Forlì
plant; other significant investments were made for the
plant in Chennai in India (4.5 M€) and by the company
Bonfiglioli Drives Shanghai Co. Ltd (0.7 M€ net of a further
2.3 M€ already made at end 2017).
• investments in plant, machinery and equipment concerned
first and foremost the Parent Company (15.4M €) for the
purchase of machinery for the enlargement of the plant
in Calderara di Reno and other significant investments
concerning the electromobility project at the plant in Forlì;
other significant investments were made for the plants in
India (1.4M€, net of a further 1,1M € already made at
end 2017), Vietnam (0.6 M€) and Slovakia (0.5 M€ net of
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a further 4.4 M€ already made at end 2017). The parent
company also made investments in industrial equipment
(6.7 M€), mainly for the purchase of moulds, broaches
and measurement instruments for the Forlì and Calderara
di Reno plants. Other significant investments were made
by the plants in India (1.5 M€), Slovakia (1.6 M€), China
(0.8 M€) and Vietnam (0.8 M€).
• investments in tangible current fixed assets, gross of the
completion of the fixed assets in 2017, mainly concern the
parent company for enlargement works and advances on
the EVO project;
• investments in software, trademarks and patents mainly
cover the purchase of enterprise software by the parent
company (1.8 M€ net of an additional 0.2 M€ already
made at end 2017).
• investments in other intangible fixed assets mostly concern
ongoing expenses for the development of Bonfiglioli
Vectron GmbH (1.8M€), Bonfiglioli USA Inc (1.7 M€) and
Bonfiglioli Mechatronic Research S.p.A. (0.5 M€).

An analysis is set out below of the main risks to which the
Group is exposed, these risks being represented by events
capable of producing negative effects on the pursuit of the
company’s objectives and which could therefore restrict the
creation of value.

Risks connected with general economic
conditions
The economic and financial standing of the Group, as well as
its assets and liabilities, are influenced by a number of factors
that make up the macro-economic picture in the various
countries in which the Group operates: increase or decrease in
GDP, consumer and business confidence, currency and interest
rate fluctuations, cost of raw materials, etc.

Risks connected with the market sectors
served
The Group works in many markets, divided into two main
Businesses: Industrial (which in turn has two product divisions,
D&P and M&M) and Mobile & Wind. Each business is followed
by dedicated organisations, i.e. Business Units, which are
responsible for developing products and customer bases for
the sectors concerned.
The wide range of markets served and applications supplied
has always provided refuge from economic slumps by allowing
the Group to balance the product offering of sectors in decline
with those in growth and the other way round. The Group is
still exposed to financial and systemic crises, such as the world
economic crisis of 2008-2009.

Risks connected with financial resource
requirements
Group performance depends, among other things, on its ability
to meet the needs arising from maturing debts and scheduled
investments through cash flows coming from operations,
available liquidity, the renewal or refinancing of bank loans and,
if necessary, recourse to other sources of funds. In order to keep
the Net Cash Position under constant check and to monitor
the business’ short-term capacity to meet its commitments,
short-term and mid-term cash flow estimates were drawn up
in order to make the most appropriate decisions.

Credit risk
Credit risk is represented by the Group’s exposure to potential
losses that may stem from the failure by customers to meet
their obligations.
Customer credit risk is constantly monitored with the use of
information and customer assessment procedures and this
type of risk has historically had very little physiological scope.

Risks connected with exchange and
interest rate fluctuations
As it operates in many markets around the world, the Group
is naturally exposed to exchange rate fluctuations, linked
mainly to the geographical distribution of production and
sales activities that generate import/export flows in currencies
different from those of the production countries. In particular,
the Group is exposed through its exports from the Eurozone to
the areas of the US Dollar, GB Pound, Australian Dollar, Chinese
Yuan and other minor currencies. On the level of incoming
flows, risks concern imports from Japan in Yen and, for those
companies based in India, Vietnam, Singapore, Turkey, Brazil
and South Africa, by imports of goods from countries having
strong currencies (Euro and USD).
The risk of interest rate fluctuations derives from medium/long
term debts at variable interest rates.
In keeping with its risk management policies, the Group
tries to minimise risks deriving from exchange and interest
rate fluctuations through the purchase of derivative financial
instruments similar in duration to the risk to be covered.

Risks connected with the use of
derivative financial instruments
The Group uses financial instruments covering the interest rate
and exchange rate risks stated above to minimise operational
import-export risks and to stabilise expected financial flows
for interest on medium/long terms debt. The companies in
the Group do not use speculative-type derivative financial
instruments.

Management report

51

Annual Report 2018

52

Risks connected with employment
relations
In the various countries in which the Group operates,
employees are protected by laws and by collective labour
contracts which provide them with guarantees through local
and national representatives. Employees are entitled to be
consulted on specific matters, including the reduction in size or
closure of departments or reductions in work force. These laws
and collective labour contracts applicable to the Group could
affect the flexibility with which it redefines or strategically
repositions its activities.

Risks connected with competition
The macroeconomic crisis of recent years has had the effect
of making consumption less foreseeable in almost all sectors
in which Group products are used (manufacturing and
building in particular) thereby changing the overall value of the
available market and increasing competition. The success of
the Group is therefore also dependent on its ability to maintain
and increase its market share, perhaps expanding into new
sectors and emerging countries.

Applications in the Marine and Wind
generators sector

Research and development
Expenditure in 2018 in the field of Research and Development
totalled around 12.5 M€ at Group level. In addition to this
are the costs capitalised by Bonfiglioli Vectron MDS for a
total of 1.7 M€, Bonfiglioli USA for 1.7 M€ and Bonfiglioli
Mechatronic Research for 0.5 M€.
A breakdown of the main development projects is given below.
The main novelty of 2018 in the Research and Development
field was the introduction of the central Group CTO function
(Chief Technology Officer), responsible for ensuring that the
Bonfiglioli Group is a permanent cutting-edge reality in system
and product technologies, defining the product development
strategy where the product development process governance
is the responsibility of the Business Units. The function is based
on four technical platforms organised according to the type
of product/technology with responsibilities for product design
and testing to increase the critical mass of the business, exploit
skills and stimulate the improvement of strategic technologies.

Applications in the earth moving,
construction and mining sector
In the earth moving, construction and mining machinery
sector, the renewal of the range of planetary drives has begun,
exploiting the German-made technologies synergically with
the technologies and competitiveness of Bonfiglioli Trasmital
products. In the US construction market and particularly tele
handler applications, a cooperation agreement has been
signed to develop a range of continuous variation transmissions
based on the principle of the mechanical toroidal variators. To
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movement continues.
Moreover the re-design and development of teeth to minimise
noise through the software optimization of special profiles and
corrections has continued, introducing innovative machining
systems.
Particular attention has been paid to the protection rating of
electric motors, now achieving IP65 as standard, to ensure
that these can be used also in machinery for external use, all
integrated in a package consisting of speed and temperature
sensors and an electro-magnetic parking brake.

maintain competitiveness in the earth moving market and
increase the market share, products have been developed
for dozer applications for Asian and American markets,
and developments and validations for gear motors for road
construction applications have continued.
In this sector the development of hydrostatic motors for
closed circuit applications continues, with the addition of new
functions for the existing sizes. In particular, close attention is
paid to researching solutions for reducing power dissipation,
working on internal friction, ventilation losses and pressure
dissipation.

Applications in the Agriculture sector
In the agricultural sector, projects and developments of gear
motors with integrated brake for various applications have
continued.
The development in this sector focuses on the introduction of
solutions with integrated hydraulic motor, in a sector that has
always been dominated by plug-in solutions.

Applications in the Electromobility sector
In the materials handling field, the development and validation
of planetary wheel drives for electric forklift trucks has been
completed, the integrated, compact solutions for dynamic
service and parking brakes, following the market trend which
increasingly privileges electric drives to the detriment of the
conventional diesel-cycle internal combustion drive.
In parallel, the development of gear motors with integrated
low-voltage asynchronous electric motors for electric platform

In the Marine and Offshore market, the product development
process documentation activity has continued along with
the relative methodologies required to achieve type approval
certification with ABS and DNVGL, which will finally be
completed during 2019.
With reference to the Wind generator sector, renewal has
begun on the whole range of blade and turret rotation
planetary drives, implementing new solutions and new sizes,
developing more compact and higher performing products,
at the same time optimizing and standardising the range
synergically with other existing products or products under
development.

Industrial applications
With reference to light duty industrial applications, the design
of a new range of coaxial gear motors has been completed,
added to the line of existing products. The aim of this new
product line, in six new modular sizes, is to complete the
market range in these sectors in which high efficiency and
greater reliability than the current standards are required.
For the industrial air-conditioning sector, a new coaxial
product has been developed, with optimised weight and size,
through an accurate analysis of the work cycles and silent
operation requirements. Through the advanced calculation
and experimentation on specific test benches, we have arrived
at the definition of a compact product without compromising
on performance. This development has therefore allowed
customers to reduce installation costs and extend the range of
their own ventilation systems.
For Heavy duty applications, 2018 saw the R&D department
working on the extension of the standard range of HDP
and HDO products. New motor arrangements have been
developed on the NEMA standard and new solutions have

been studied for increasing efficiency and the consequent
increase in transmissible power without auxiliary cooling
systems. The aim was achieved thanks to the introduction of
self-cooling systems integrated in the current products, with a
minor impact on current sizes.
With reference to the development of electric motors for
industrial operating machinery, in 2018 a project began for the
renewal of the current range of electric motors responding to
efficiency class IE3, aiming to improve energy performance,
integrate the electric motors to their referred gear motors in
terms of design and mechanics, making the various options
available modular and at the same time reducing costs through
the optimization of magnetic material exploitation. The range
of new IE3 motors created as a result also allows the Bonfiglioli
range to be extended on the market, passing from the size
with axis height 63 to 160.
The development activities also continue for the new range
of electric motors in efficiency class IE4, aiming to optimise
acceleration performance, in terms of maximum accelerating
inertia, reducing noise and bringing the design and new
modular options in line with the new IE3 range.

Transversal research activities for
products, digitalisation and IOT systems
During 2018 the development activities continued to “digitize”
our products, linking them to the world of IoT. The main
activities focused on the development of systems architecture
for the predictive and prognostic diagnostic application and
relative algorithms, and in particular the implementation of a
condition monitoring system demonstrator used to send data
to a suitably configured cloud platform.
The project involves integration in the gear motor and
the validation of a torque sensor using magnetostriction
technology to measure the transmitted torque.
A demonstrator was also implemented for using long range
wireless data transmission protocols, and studies began
on the application of a predictive diagnostic system for the
transmission of industrial vehicles with interface to the control
electronics and data transmission to a cloud.
Finally, the development of an integrated predictive and
prognostic analytical system continues, based on Bonfiglioli
specifications and with innovative contents in terms of system
characteristics: modularity, sensor integration, integrated load
sensor, wireless communication, self-powered.
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Development activities and optimization of
product development support processes
Following the centralisation of the Research & Development
activities and the consequent unification of the R&D
department, a project began to review and unify the processes
in the PLM (Product Lifecycle Management) system. In
particular, new processes relating to Engineering change
request management and the issue of Engineering change
notices, previously diversified for each Business Unit, have
been optimised and issued.
These have been re-designed and integrated to ensure
greater response speed, making them stronger on the basis
of authorisation levels depending on the complexity of the
required change.
The rules and processes relating to component, sub-assembly
and finished product coding have also been revised to make
them unambiguous for all functions at group level.

Inverters and servo-drives
In 2018, the main objective of the R&D activity “Mechatronics”
was the research into new mathematical models and
strategies for the control of electric motors and condition
monitoring. The activities included the installation of in-theloop hardware simulation systems and their use to assess the
capacities of the frequency converter. From the analysis of
internal components, in terms of residual life and the estimate
of maintenance intervals, these assessments shall be extended
to the whole drive control chain, including motors and gear
motors, in cooperation with the other companies in the Group.
The electrical machinery modelling, the activity focus was on
the improvement of control strategies for synchronous and
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asynchronous motors, thanks to the greater potential offered
by more recent simulation instruments. In particular, the use
of digital twin for the processes to be controlled has begun,
in order to stress the control in very varied and even extreme
operating conditions, which cannot always be achieved using
physical systems. The resulting algorithms will be integrated
into the firmware of the new series of inverters, during design.
In 2018, we continued to work on the development of
three new series of inverters and servo-drives, intended to
profoundly renew our product range, consolidating the
current applications and entering in new applications in the
Motion Control market segment. The project involves the
adoption of latest-generation electronic technologies, the
simplicity of creating custom solutions, the introduction of
high-level functional security functions, in conformity with the
most recent security requirements for industrial machinery.
The product functions also respond to the new market
demands, in terms of energy efficiency and digitization (IIoT,
Industrial Internet of Things), with a particular focus on the
most recent advanced connectivity standards including OPCUA and the development of new user interfaces, for local and
remote use.
After the R&D activities carried out in 2016 and 2017 on
new controls for synchronous reluctance motors, the new
electric motor technology developed by Bonfiglioli, in 2018
the relative control software was released for the Active Cube
inverter series. The result is an innovative motor/inverter/gear
motor package, used to obtain very high energy efficiency and
power density. Further benefits can be obtained in terms of
dynamic control, superior to that of asynchronous motors.

Digital&IT (Information Technology)
The main novelty in the IT field in 2018 was the official
introduction of a new IT Digital area alongside the Tradition IT
area, now called IT Core.
The substantial difference between the two areas is that while
the first maintains control over the traditional IT operations
and strategies in the facility field (datacenter, network, cloud
computing) and application field (ERP, CRM, PLM), the Digital
area has the task of driving a 360° Digital Transformation process
aiming to introduce the pervasive adoption of innovative
digital technologies (virtual reality, sensor data collection,
machine learning) in all business areas, with a particular focus
on those areas which today are less affected by the digital field:
manufacturing (with the introduction of typical technologies
and methods of Industry 4.0), research and development
of Bonfiglioli products (starting sensoring, computerisation
and connectivity projects for conventional gear motors –
connected products – and/or retrofitting of existing products
such as inverters to equip them with connectivity potential for
transmission to cloud of the parameters monitored in real time
for the purpose of preventive maintenance and patches of the
firmware installed on board the microcontroller).
In this regard, the first Smart Inverter has been created, a socalled edge computing device able to interface with existing
inverters already present in our clients’ applications, able to
collect the data from the inverter sensors in real time, process
it locally and send it via Wifi or 3G connectivity to a storage
cloud with the possibility of dashboarding and data analytics.
Again in the Digital area, a dedicated competence center has
completed the software selection of the most suitable solution
for Bonfiglioli to implement the new B2B e-commerce, able to
manage product configuration, correct pricing according to the
configuration variants and the exploded 3D size drawings. The
solution is Hybris Commerce by SAP and its implementation,
along with the creation of the first product selection wizards
on a functional or application basis, is planned for 2019 but
the proof of concepts created in 2018 have consolidated the
faith in the feasibility of the implementation plan for 2019.

In Digital terms, the following results have been achieved:
• Strong involvement of all the top management in the
awareness of the impact of the adoption of digital
technologies in the so-called business as usual at Bonfiglioli.
The result was obtained after a number of visits in Europe
and North America to business excellences and for the
digital transformation projects they have implemented (e.g.
Saras,...) as well as for the provision of digital transformation
support services (Cisco, Desktop Metal, Siemens, Bosch,
Qualcomm,...) which actively involved all the first line
managers
• Definition of a short and medium-long term roadmap on
priority digital initiatives for Bonfiglioli and their consequent
program management, in a classic PMO viewpoint for
the most mature initiatives (e.g. continuation of MES
implementation) and from an agile viewpoint for particularly
innovative projects (e.g. Digital Product ID, Additive
Manufacturing and Product Selector)
In the IT Core or traditional area, activities continued for the
shifting of services initially managed on-premises towards
cloud architectures (above all Microsoft Azure).
The replacement of the servers in the plants and branches in
Italy and abroad is almost completed, with hyper-converging
solutions aiming to minimise set-up times, downtime risks for
critical services and above all management costs (TCO).
In terms of applications, the activation of the CRM (Customer
Relationship Management) platform based on Salesforce
technology has been completed.
A complex software selection process led, at the end of the
year, to the identification of the Warehouse Management
solution (Infor SCE) to support the developments in the Supply
Chain processes.
Finally, the necessary activities have been completed to adapt
the personal data management procedures to maximise
compliance with the requirements of the new GDPR legislation.
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Quality, safety, health and environment
In 2018 the Quality Management System certification according
to standard ISO 9001:2015 was renewed, extending and
consolidating the Risk Based Thinking approach and including
the Pune plant (India) in the scope of the group certification.
To allow the analysis of the key business indicators more
exploitable, a Group Scorecard was further developed to make
the data available and easily monitorable, for an increasing
number of company processes and departments.
In terms of supplier quality, cooperation continued with
the purchasing function to define a Group Vendor List and
consolidate a stronger supplier base. In particular work
progressed on the optimization of the supply chain in China

and India, following the Global Strategy logics and working on
the selection of suppliers for electromobility.
The internal auditor team competences were strengthen
by specific training courses (VDA 6.3), working on the
development of instruments to increase the effectiveness and
technological content of the audit process.
In terms of products, support continued to the local Quality
department for Claims management and custom typeapproval audits, continuing the development of the APQP
methodology (Advance Product Quality Planning). Investments
were also made in Digital Quality development.

Human resources
The total number of Group resources grew in 2018 by 11,3
%, from 3,631 staff at the end of 2017 to 4,042 at the end
of 2018 (of these, 3,712 are employees and 330 temporary
workers).
In detail, 1,490 work for the Parent Company (141 temporary
workers), 1,667 in the other production sites (171 temporary
workers), 373 in the sales branches in Europe (8 temporary
workers) and 512 in the overseas sales branches (10 temporary
workers).
2018 saw a number of important projects running in the area
of Human Resources.
The Talent Acquisition activity saw significant growth in terms
of the incoming numbers compared to 2017: in Italy alone
147 new staff were hired, around 62% aged less than 35,
confirming the significant investments the company is making
in young people.
In 2018 work continued to further consolidate the Group
attractiveness, through a number of Employer Branding
initiatives. For this reason activities continued on the Linkedin
campaigns, which disseminated the professional opportunities
and new projects in Bonfiglioli, through the “faces” of
company testimonials. In addition, a roadmap has been
defined involving the participation in more than 14 career
day and technical workshop initiatives, aiming to create an
increasingly strong partnership with Universities and Schools of
excellence, such as the Sant’Anna in Pisa. Particularly important
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was the participation in the Recruiting day at the University
of Bologna, where students were able to test their skills in a
digital game. 2018 was also the year which saw the start of
the degree programme in Mechatronics at the University of
Bologna, where Bonfiglioli contributed to the definition of
contents and professional profiles to be trained. Thanks to
the partnerships with universities, over 15 internships have
been activated, some of which involve the preparation of the
degree dissertation. Finally, as concerns younger students, the
school work experience project continues with technical and
industrial secondary schools in the provinces of Bologna, Forlì
and Rovereto, hosting 16 students during the year.
Concluding the recruiting process, a training session, Induction
day, was established for all new employees in the Group. This
monthly initiative is held to welcome new employees and
provide useful information on life in the company, its business
activities, as well as guidance on the Bonfiglioli culture and
values.
2018 also saw the consolidation of a sustainable industrial
relations system, following the provisions of our Supplementary
Corporate Contract signed in 2017 and based on participation,
innovation and welfare. Over 85 trade union meetings, on
three negotiating levels, with the agreement and active
participation in bilateral committees established specifically
to deal with central personnel-related topics, bear witness
to the meaning of participation in Bonfiglioli. Innovation

has translated into practical terms in several areas, including
smart-working, through a pilot project involving four company
functions, allowing employees to perform their activities
outside the company premises. In 2018 the great success of
the “B-Welfare” was confirmed once again, with practically
full subscription and expenditure of the available budget,
bearing witness to who this continues to respond to real
personal needs. Finally, again in line with the company’s focus
on people and their development, an agreement was signed
for training 4.0, representing one of the very rare examples in
the national industrial relations field.
And specifically in terms of training, 2018 was a particularly
significant year. The Generational Re-Training Program was
launched, involving 760 people and over 16,000 hours of
training delivered. Moreover, to extend the range of excellent
courses and master programmes we offer our Talents and
Managers, we signed a new partnership with CEIBS in
Shanghai, considered to be one of the top ranked business
schools based in China, in addition to those already running
with IESE (Navarra, Spain) and ESCP (Paris, France). In 2018 the
Re-Training Center activities also involved, at worldwide level,
all our Country Managers with training focused on Strategic
Leadership & Innovation in order to support them in tackling
the important challenges of the future.

2018 saw the implementation of the Bonfiglioli Digital ReTraining pilot project, aiming to begin an up-skill process
for the staff working in Evo, the Group’s new plant 4.0.
The path consisted in technical training on issues including
Cybersecurity and Cloud, Sensing tools, Manufacturing 4.0
and a cultural part, covering topics including Learning Agility,
Change Management, Communication 4.0, etc. The training
programme began in March, ended in July and involved 15
Blue and WhiteCollar workers for around 170 hours of training
per person. The success and resonance of this project drove
the company to design methods for extending it to all persons
working in Evo, planning the Manufacturing Excellence
Academy 4.0 starting from January 2019.
Again linked to the start-up of Evo, in 2018 the Change
to Evo project was launched. In this project, HR worked on
the front line in planning and implementing a process of
organizational and cultural transformation of the Italian plants
in the D&P Business Unit with a view to Evo. This process,
aiming to accompany the staff toward the new production
reality, starting in the middle of 2019, began by the creation
of the vision and principles inspiring this path of change, and
continued with the definition of a Change Plan: the division
into project areas for all activities required to ensure a planned,
consistent approach to the new plant and its logics.
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Business outlook
After the continuous growth of the portfolio in 2018, the
order book for the first two months of the new financial year
recorded a physiological drop compared to the same period of
the previous financial year (-8%), with more significant effects
on M&W (-14%) and M&M (-11%) business areas, net of the
increase in D&P (+5%).
In terms of consolidated turnover for the first two months of
2019, growth of 14% has been recorded compared to the
same period of the previous year, with positive trends for all
Bus (+15% D&P, +14% M&W e +5% M&M).
After continuous growth trends and despite the reference
market scenario is complex and with numerous macroeconomic

and political uncertainties, the Group has a strong and primary
order portfolio and expects that the financial year 2019 will, in
terms of turnover, show slightly better trends than the previous
year.
In financial terms, the Group has adopted a series of processes
and agreements aiming to guarantee the appropriate
management of financial resources, coping with the needs
deriving from cash flow operations, caused above all by the
considerable investments made in the last 2 years and this year
too, as indicated in the approved Business Plan.

Further information
Treasury shares
The parent company does not hold and has never held
treasury shares, nor does it hold stakes or shares in controlling
companies.

Calderara di Reno (Bo), March 29th, 2019
for the Board of Directors
The Chairwoman
Sonia Bonfiglioli
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Consolidated financial statement
as of December 31, 2018
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Euro Thousand)

ASSETS

2018

2017

B) Fixed assets (net of cumulated depreciation)

ASSETS

2018

2017

205,708

189,948

II. Receivables

I. Intangible fixed assets
1) Start up and expansion costs

(Euro Thousand)

1) Trade receivables
22

38

2) Development costs

1,632

2,176

5bis) Tax receivables

3) Patents and rights to use intellectual properties

3,855

3,255

- due within 12 months

5,699

4,826

4) Concession, licenses, trademarks and similar rights

12,471

6,761

- due after 12 months

5,384

5,752

5) Goodwill and consolidation differences

22,031

13,729

11,083

10,578

6) Assets in progress and advances

6,826

2,387

5ter) Deferred tax assets

7) Other intangible fixed assets

4,534

4,959

- due within 12 months

32,064

29,609

51,371

33,305

- due after 12 months

7,648

8,783

39,712

38,392

Total Intangible fixed assets

- due within 12 months

Subtotal

II. Tangible fixed assets

Subtotal

1) Land and buildings

117,289

108,651

5quater) Other receivables

2) Plant and machinery

54,023

38,967

- due within 12 months

2,375

4,369

3) Industrial and commercial equipments

21,779

17,446

- due after 12 months

3,736

3,372

4) Other tangible fixed assets

7,386

6,109

6,111

7,741

5) Assets in progress and advances

19,955

16,255

Total Receivables

262,614

246,659

220,432

187,428

III. Current financial assets
5) Positive financial derivatives

210

153

6) Other securities

199

207

409

360

38,480

28,251

54

56

Total Cash at bank and on hand

38,534

28,307

C) TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

565,099

489,996

1,168

818

838,125

711,627

Total Tangible fixed assets
III. Financial fixed assets
1) Investments

Subtotal

d-bis) Other companies

55

80

Total Current financial assets

Total Financial fixed assets

55

80

IV. Cash at bank and on hand

271,858

220,813

B ) TOTAL FIXED ASSETS ( NET OF CUMULATED DEPRECIATION )

3) Cash on hand

C) Current assets
I. Inventory
1) Raw materials, supplies and consumables

38,906

30,687

2) Work in progress and semifinished goods

108,585

83,700

4) Finished goods and goods for resale

115,685

99,625

5) Advances

366

658

Total Inventory

263,542

214,670

Consolidated financial statements as of December 31st, 2018

1) Banks and postal accounts

D) PREPAID EXPENSES AND ACCRUED INCOME
TOTAL ASSETS
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Euro Thousand)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2018

2017

(Euro Thousand)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2018

2017

2,625

2,625

- due within 12 months

109,320

60,433

- due after 12 months

80,572

78,376

189,892

138,809

- due within 12 months

1,242

1,654

- due after 12 months

3,309

4,390

4,551

6,044

6,147

5,348

216,972

179,662

D) Payables

A) Shareholders' equity
I. Share capital

50,000

50,000

III. Revaluation reserves

40,550

40,550

IV. Legal reserve

6,629

6,000

VI. Other reserves

1) Bonds
- due after 12 months
4) Banks

- Extraordinary reserve

72,408

61,713

- Consolidation reserve

16,965

16,965

- Foreign exchange currency conversion reserve

(9,626)

(5,718)

5,452

5,452

85,199

78,412

VII. Reserves for hedging

(745)

(228)

VIII. Retained earnings (losses) carried forward

82,748

71,875

IX. Net income (loss)

37,380

23,454

301,761

270,063

Minority interests share capital and reserves

8,603

6,552

Minority interests net income(loss)

249

942

- due within 12 months

3,529

2,463

8,852

7,494

- due after 12 months

-

41

310,613

277,557

3,529

2,504

9,706

9,037

- Other reserves
Subtotal

GROUP SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Total minority interests
A) CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
B) Reserves for risks and charges

Subtotal
5) Other financial institutions

Subtotal
6) Advances
- due within 12 months
7) Trade payables
- due within 12 months
12) Tax payables

Subtotal
13) Payables to social security agencies
- due within 12 months

1) Termination indemnity and similar liabilities

11,802

11,225

2) Tax Reserve

1,132

1,232

- due within 12 months

26,658

23,140

2bis) Deferred taxes liabilities

9,919

7,511

- due after 12 months

565

2,522

3) Negative financial derivatives

1,008

425

27,223

25,662

269

269

460,645

369,691

4) Other Reserves

31,200

31,307

1,730

2,048

B ) TOTAL RESERVES FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

55,330

51,969

838,125

711,627

C ) EMPLOYEE SEVERANCE INDEMNITY RESERVE

9,807

10,362

3bis) Consolidated reserve for future losses

Consolidated financial statements as of December 31st, 2018

14) Other payables

Subtotal
D) TOTAL PAYABLES
E ) ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(Euro Thousand)

2018

(Euro Thousand)

2017

2018

2017

1,690

1,307

1,690

1,307

(7,667)

(7,467)

(1,015)

(5,638)

(8,682)

(13,105)

(6,692)

(11,798)

-

2

-

2

(9)

-

(9)

-

(9)

2

56,506

38,740

- current

(17,475)

(15,608)

(1,140)

1,580

(262)

(316)

(18,877)

(14,344)

21) NET INCOME ( LOSS ) INCLUDING MINORITY INTEREST

37,629

24,396

Minority interest (income)/loss

(249)

(942)

37,380

23,454

16) Other financial income

A) Production value
1) Net revenue from sales and services

912,964

808,442

2) Change in work in progress, semi-finished and finished goods

39,826

27,490

4) Assets increase for internal works

2,212

1,411

d) other income from
- others
Subtotal
17) Interest expenses and other financial charges

5) Other revenues and incomes
- operating grants

2,358

1,391

- others

15,973

15,974

18,331

17,365

973,333

854,708

Subtotal
A) TOTAL PRODUCTION VALUE

e) other
17bis) Exchange rate gains and losses, net
Subtotal
C) TOTAL FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES
D) Adjustments to financial assets and liabilities

B) Production costs
6) Raw materials, supplies, consumables & goods for resale

569,082

480,306

7) Services

125,673

115,274

8) Use of third party assets

10,664

9,930

18) Revaluations
c) securities current assets write up
Subtotal
19) Write off

9) Personnel
a) Wages and salaries

130,143

123,252

b) Social contributions

34,657

33,118

c) Severance indemnity

4,471

4,375

d) Pension and retirement costs

1,040

723

e) Other costs

1,582

1,082

171,893

162,550

Subtotal
10) Depreciation, amortization and write-downs

c) securities current assets write off
Subtotal
D) TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS TO FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
INCOME BEFORE TAXES ( A– B±C±D )
20) Income taxes

a) Amortization of intangible fixed assets

6,032

5,670

- deferred

b) Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

22,729

21,168

- direct taxes related previous years

-

40

c2) Tangible fixed assets write off

3,101

3,895

d) Bad debts provision

2,968

3,504

34,830

34,277

(10,470)

(6,260)

13) Other provisions

2,419

2,954

14) Other operating expenses

6,035

5,141

B) TOTAL PRODUCTION COSTS

910,126

804,172

DIFFERENCE BETWEEN PRODUCTION VALUE AND COSTS (A–B)

63,207

50,536

300

-

300

-

c1) Intangible fixed assets write off

Subtotal
11) Change in raw materials, supplies, consumables & goods for resale

20) TOTAL INCOME TAXES

NET INCOME ( LOSS ) OF THE GROUP

C) Financial income and expenses
15) Income from investments
e) others
Subtotal

Consolidated financial statements as of December 31st, 2018
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT DEFINED WITH INDIRECT METHOD

CASH FLOW STATEMENT DEFINED WITH INDIRECT METHOD
(Euro Thousand)

2018
37,380
249
18,877
5,977
(46)
(1)
(9)

23,454
942
14,344
6,160
(58)
-

1. Income (Loss) for the year before income taxes, interests, dividends and gain/losses from dismissal

62,427

44,842

Adjustments for non-cash items that had no counterpart in net working capital
Provisions:
- Bad Debt Reserve
- Warranty
- Other risks
- Pension fund
Depreciation
Amortization
Write-downs for impairment losses tangible
Write-downs for impairment losses intangible
Derivatives value adjustments
Other adjustments for non monetary items
2. Cash Flow before net working capital variations

2,968
1,766
653
1,040
22,729
6,032
3,101
526
9
101,251

723
21,168
5,670
3,895
40
(133)
(2)
82,661

Net Working Capital variations
Decrease/(increase) of inventory
Decrease/(increase) of trade receivables
Increase/(decrease) of trade payables
Increase/(decrease) of advances from customers
Decrease/(increase) positive accruals and deferrals
Increase/(decrease) negative accruals and deferrals
Minority variation
Other variation of working capital
3. Cash Flow after net working capital variations

(48,872)
(18,728)
37,310
799
(158)
(145)
1,109
3,999
76,565

(24,019)
(5,869)
17,405
2,147
332
1,224
(354)
2,184
75,711

Consolidated financial statements as of December 31st, 2018

(6,342)
(17,508)
(3,544)
49,171

(Euro Thousand)

2017

A. Cash flows from operating activities (indirect method)
Income (Loss) for the year - Group
Income (Loss) for the year - Thirds
Income taxes
Negative Interests/(Positive interests)
(Gain)/losses from tangible assets
(Gain)/losses from intangible assets
(Gain)/losses from financial assets

Other adjustments
Interest cashed/(paid)
(Income taxes paid)
(Provisions utilization)
Cash flows from operating activities (A)

69

3,504
2,954

(5,269)
(25,118)
(4,965)
40,359

2018

2017

(59,891)
361
696
46

(36,366)
611
3,970
58

(7,054)
13
(13)
1

(3,160)
2
398
-

(1)
35

(4)

(1)

-

(17,044)
(82.852)

(34.491)

45,113
18,976
(14,499)

21,250
101,097
(110,935)

-

-

(3,908)
(517)
(1)
(1,256)
43,908
10,227

(11,595)

Cash and cash equivalents at January 1st
of which:
bank and postal deposits
cheques
cash

28,307

25,093

28,251
56

25,047
1
45

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31st
of which:
bank and postal deposits
cheques
cash
Cash flow

38,534

28,307

38,480
54
10,227

28,251
56
3,214

B. Cash flows from Investment activity
Tangible assets
(Investments)
Dismissal
+/- FX effect
Capital Gains/(Losses)
Intangible assets
(Investments)
Dismissal
+/- FX effect
Capital Gains/(Losses)
Financial assets
(Investments)
Dismissal
Financial assets that are not fixed
(Investments)
(Acquisition of business units, net of cash)
Acquisition O&K Antriebstechnik GmbH
Cash flows from Investment activity (B)
C. Cash flows from financial activity
Third-party funding
Increase (decrease) payables to banks and other financial inst.
New loans
(loans reimbursement)
Own funds
Bonds variation
FEX variation on Equity
Derivatives reserves variation
Other variation on Group Equity
Dividends (and interim dividends) paid
Cash flows from financial activity (C)
Increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents (A ± B ± C)

(112)
1
(2,360)
(2,654)
3,214

Consolidated financial statements as of December 31st, 2018
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Notes to
the consolidated
financial
statements

This section has been translated into English solely for the convenience of
international readers

Annual Report 2018

72

73

Foreword
The consolidated financial statements were drafted
according to the provisions of Legislative Decree No 139 of
18th August 2015, in execution of directive 2013/34/EU and
according to Italian Accounting principles issued by OIC as
modified by amendments published on 29th January 2019,
valid for financial statements starting from 1st January 2018
or from following dates.
This consolidated financial statement is formed by the
following documents:
• Balance Sheet;
• Income Statement;
• Cash flow statement;
• Notes to consolidated financial statements.

The Notes include the reconciliation statement between
shareholders’ equity and the net income of the Parent
Company and the same items in the consolidated financial
statements. In order to disclose further information
regarding the variation of the Net Cash Position of the
Group, the consolidated cash flow statement has been
additionally annexed to the Notes (Annexed A).
As regards the nature of the activities conducted by the
Group and related performance, reference is made to the
contents of the Management Report.
All figures in the financial statements and the relative Notes
are expressed in thousands of Euros (K€), unless otherwise
indicated.

Form and contents
of the consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of Bonfiglioli Group’s companies, namely the
Parent Company Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A and the Italian
and foreign subsidiaries in which the company holds more
than 50% of the capital, either directly or indirectly, or
exercises management and control in relation to specific
agreements to this effect.
The financial statements of the Group Companies
utilised for the integral consolidation were approved by
the shareholders’ meetings of the individual companies
concerned, suitably modified wherever necessary to unify
them with the accounting principles adopted by the Group,

which comply with the financial principles imposed by
law. If the relative financial statements had not yet been
approved by the respective general meetings when the
consolidated financial statements were drawn up, the draft
financial statements prepared for approval by the respective
Boards of Directors were utilised.
If the financial year of companies closes on a date other than
31st December, interim financial statements were drawn up
at 31st December utilising the Group accounting principles.
The subsidiary companies included in the consolidation area
at 31st December 2018 are as follows:

SHAREHOLDING
COUNTRY

CURRENCY

SHARE
CAPITAL

31/12/18 31/12/17

Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A.

Italy

€

50,000,000

Parent Company

Bonfiglioli Italia S.p.A. sole shareholder

Italy

€

16.000.000

100%

100%

Canada

CAD

2,000,000

100%

100%

U.S.A.

USD

4,000,000

100%

100%

Germany

€

3,000,000

100%

100%

France

€

1,900,000

100%

100%

Australia

AUD

11,000,000

100%

100%

Bonfiglioli U.K. Ltd

Great Britain

GBP

200,000

100%

100%

Bonfiglioli Power Transmission Pty Ltd

South Africa

ZAR

64,001

100%

83.75%

Bonfiglioli South Africa Pty Ltd (*)

South Africa

ZAR

8,000,000

75%

62.81%

Bonfiglioli Transmission Pvt Ltd (*****)

India

INR

1,281,818,180

100%

100%

Bonfiglioli Drives (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

China

USD

30,000,000

83.33%

83.33%

Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH (**)

Germany

€

500,000

100%

100%

Bonfiglioli Slovakia Sro

Slovakia

€

14,937,263

100%

100%

Turkey

TRY

8,000,000

100%

100%

Vietnam

USD

17,000,000

100%

100%

Bonfiglioli Redutores do Brasil Ltda

Brazil

BRL

55,000,000

73.82%

100%

Bonfiglioli South East Asia Pte Ltd

Singapore

SGD

4,150,000

100%

100%

Bonfiglioli Mechatronic Research S.p.A sole shareholder

Italy

€

3,500,000

100%

100%

Bonfiglioli Renewable Power Conversion India Pvt Ltd. (***)

India

INR

350,000,000

100%

100%

Bonfiglioli Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd (****)

China

CNY

1,500,000

83.33%

83.33%

Germany

€

25,000

-

100%

Spain

€

2,175,000

95%

95%

Germany

€

1,000,000

100%

95.50%

DENOMINATION

Bonfiglioli Canada Inc.
Bonfiglioli U.S.A. Inc.
Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH
Bonfiglioli Transmissions Sa
Bonfiglioli Transmission (Aust) Pty Ltd

Bonfiglioli Power Transmission Jsc
Bonfiglioli Vietnam Ltd

Bonfiglioli Vectron MDS GmbH (******)
Tecnotrans Bonfiglioli Sa
O&K Antriebstechnik GmbH

(*) Subsidiary indirectly controlled through Bonfiglioli Power Transmission Pty Ltd
(**) Subsidiary indirectly controlled through Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH
(***) Subsidiary indirectly controlled through Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH
(****) Subsidiary indirectly controlled through Bonfiglioli Drives (Shanghai) Co. Ltd
(*****) Owned 2.48% by Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH
(******) Incorporated by Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH
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With reference to the changes made during the year, we
draw your attention to the following events:
• merger of the company Bonfiglioli Vectron MDS GmbH into
Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH with tax and accounting effects
back-dated to 1 January 2018;
• reduction to cover losses and subsequent share capital
increase paid into the Brazilian subsidiary, completed in
February. The capital increase was performed by Bonfiglioli
Riduttori S.p.A. and SIMEST S.p.A. which, following the
transaction, acquired a share of 26.18% stake;

• purchase by minority shareholders in July of the remaining
stake of 16.25% of the share capital of Bonfiglioli Power
Transmission Pty Ltd (South Africa) at a total cost of 2.6 M€;
• purchase by minority shareholders on 20.11.2018 of
the remaining stake of 4.5% of the share capital of O&K
Antriebstechnik GmbH (Germany) at a total cost of 17 M€.

Consolidation area changes

for all assets and liabilities and the average exchange rate
calculated over the full twelve months for items in the
income statement. The items of equity, existing at the
date of initial consolidation, are converted at the exchange
rates effective at that date, while subsequent changes are
converted at the historic exchange rates effective at the date
of the relative transactions. Conversion differences arising
both from the conversion of equity items to the year-end
rates with respect to the historic rates, and existing between
the average exchange rates and year-end exchange rates
for the income statement, are recorded in a specific item
of consolidated equity denominated “Currency conversion
reserve”.
The exchange rates utilised for companies operating outside
the Euro area are as follows:

“Retained earnings and losses carried forward”.
E. Any profits and losses that have yet to be realised in relation
to third parties deriving from transactions between Group
companies were eliminated, as well as the items that give
rise to payables, receivables, costs and revenues.
F. The dividends distributed by the Companies within the
Group were cancelled.
G. The portions of shareholders’ equity and profit due to
minority shareholders of the consolidated subsidiaries were
deducted from the Group portions and recorded separately
under specific items of consolidated equity and in the
income statement.
H.The financial statements of foreign companies were
converted to Euro, applying the year-end exchange rate

With respect to the Consolidated Financial Statement of
31.12.2017, no consolidation area changes occurred.
COMPANY

Drafting principles
The structure of the balance sheet, the income statement
and cash flow statement are as required by Italian Legislative
Decree 139/2015.
Items preceded by Arabic numerals having zero contents
have been omitted.

The balance sheet provides a separate indication of
shareholders’ equity and the minority interests share of
profits. No items of assets and liabilities are recorded under
more than one caption in the tables.

Consolidation principles
A.In preparing the financial statements for the consolidated
companies, the net assets method is used (line-by-line),
consisting in recording all the items under assets and
liabilities and in the income statement in their entirety.
B. The book value of consolidated equity investments is written
off against the related equity at the time of first consolidation
and the resulting differences, if negative, were recognised
under a specific item of consolidated equity denominated
“Consolidation Reserve” or “Consolidated Reserve for
future losses” where representing estimated losses for future
years, entered in the Reserve for risks and charges. Any
positive differences existing at the time of first consolidation
were recorded in the consolidated financial statements,

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

where possible, under the items of assets of the companies
included in the consolidation area, or in the “Goodwill” of
the assets for differences that, despite their characteristics
of deferment affecting more than one year, could not be
allocated to specific items under assets. In contrast, if these
items were not considered to be deferred to more than one
year, they were deducted from the consolidation reserve.
C.The positive differences recorded were amortised in
accordance with the rates utilised for the assets to which
they refer; the goodwill is amortised throughout the
estimated future useful life.
D.The results achieved, following initial consolidation, were
entered in a specific item of consolidated equity denominated
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CURRENCY

B.S.
B.S.
P.L. EXCHANGE
EXCHANGE
EXCHANGE
RATE 2018
RATE 2018
RATE 2017

P.L. EXCHANGE
RATE 2017

Bonfiglioli U.K. Ltd

GBP

0.89453

0.88471

0.88723

0.87667

Bonfiglioli Canada Inc.

CAD

1.5605

1.5294

1.5039

1.4647

Bonfiglioli USA Inc.

USD

1.145

1.181

1.1993

1.1297

Bonfiglioli Transmission (Aust) Pty Ltd

AUD

1.622

1.5797

1.5346

1.4732

Bonfiglioli Power Transmission Pty Ltd

ZAR

16.4594

15.6186

14.8054

15.049

Bonfiglioli Transmission Pvt Ltd

INR

79.7298

80.7332

76.6055

73.5324

Bonfiglioli Renewable Power Conversion India Pvt Ltd

INR

79.7298

80.7332

76.6055

73.5324

Bonfiglioli Drives Shanghai Co. Ltd.

CNY

7.8751

7.8081

7.8044

7.629

Bonfiglioli Trading Shanghai Co. Ltd

CNY

7.8751

7.8081

7.8044

7.629

Bonfiglioli Power Trasmission JSC

TRY

6.0588

5.7077

4.5464

4.1206

Bonfiglioli Redutores Do Brasil Ltda

BRL

4.444

4.3085

3.9729

3.6054

Bonfiglioli South East Asia Pte Ltd

SGD

1.5591

1.5926

1.6024

1.5588

Bonfiglioli Vietnam Ltd

VND

26,547.0

27,180.28235

27,223.0

25,661.50353

I. There are no companies consolidated through Net Equity
Method.
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Valuation criteria
The accounting principles and valuation criteria adopted
in drafting the financial statements are in compliance with
the principles of the Italian Civil Code and the accounting
standards prescribed by the Italian Accounting Authority
(O.I.C.). Where such principles are lacking or insufficient, the
point of reference is provided by international accounting
standards (IAS/IFRS) where these latter are in compliance with
Italian legal requirements.
The consolidated cash flow statement has been restated
considering the required information provided by the “OIC 10
- Cash flow statement” principle.
The consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the general principles of clarity, truthfulness
and fairness; specifically:
• valuation of the items of the financial statements was carried
out in accordance with the general principles of prudence
and economic competence in a prospective of on-going
business;
• account was taken of the risks and losses relating to the
year, even when such risks and losses became known after
the end of the year;
• the statements refer exclusively to profits realised at the
closing date of the financial year;

• income and expenses are considered to be relative to the
year irrespective of the effective collection or payment dates;
• dissimilar components covered by single items have been
valued separately;
• no exceptional cases occurred that justified a departure from
the provisions of legislative provisions.
Specifically, the valuation criteria adopted in the preparation of
the financial statements are as specified below.

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are recorded at purchasing cost
increased by ancillary expenses or, if the assets were internally
constructed, on the basis of the costs sustained directly or
indirectly, entered in respect of the attributable portion.
The cost, calculated as illustrated above, may be revaluated
in certain cases if this action is permitted by the relative laws.
Goodwill amortization has been performed based on its
useful life. In exceptional cases where it was not possible to
determine a reliable useful life, goodwill was amortized in a
period not exceeding ten years.
Intangible fixed assets were systematically amortised on the
basis of the following rates:

amounts in the income statement.
Provisions made in lieu of depreciation are systematically
allocated by the application of rates that are considered to
accurately reflect the residual useful life of the assets to which
they refer.

Buildings

2% to 10%

Plant and machinery

10% to 25%

Industrial / commercial equipment

10% to 30%

Other assets

10% to 30%

Equity investments held as fixed assets
The other investments are recorded at their purchase cost
adjusted, when necessary, for lasting loss in value. In case
the loss in value is no longer considered lasting following the
positive trend of the company, the investment is revaluated up
to the purchasing cost.

Inventories

(*) or other specific rates tied, for example, to the term of the contracts to which the fixed assets refer

Inventories are valued in accordance with the general principle
of the lower between purchasing cost and market value:
• raw materials are valued adopting the FIFO method;
• work in progress is valued according to the stage of
completion reached on the basis of the cost of materials,
labour, industrial depreciation and indirect production costs;
• semi-finished and finished products are valued adopting the
FIFO method, on the basis of the cost of materials, labour,
industrial depreciation and other production costs;
• obsolete or slow-moving materials and products are valued
according to their estimated useful life or future market
value, by means of an entry under write-down provisions.
Infra-group profits present within the inventories of the
consolidated companies are eliminated.

Tangible fixed assets

Receivables (including the ones in current
financial assets)

Start-up costs

20%

Development costs

20%

Patents & right to use intellectual property

20% - 33.33%

Concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights

5% - 33.33%

Goodwill

10% – 20%

Other

Plant and equipment are recorded in the financial statement
at purchasing cost or construction cost, inclusive of all directly
connected ancillary expenses and adjusted in the event that
specific laws allow assets value to be adapted to the changes
occurred in the buying power of the currency.
The revaluation figure for an asset does not exceed the value
actually attributable to it with reference to its likely economic
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20% (*)

use by the company or, if it does exceed this level, with
reference to its sale value.
Assets acquired by means of leasing contracts are recorded in
accordance with financial method as recommended by OIC
17 that foresee the attribution of historic cost of the relative
goods under assets, recording of the debt under liabilities,
and entry of the relative financial expenses and depreciation

Ordinary costs for maintenance and repair are treated as
operating costs; while extraordinary costs that extend the
useful life are added to the value of the asset.
The ordinary annual rates utilised for the depreciation of
tangible assets are as follows:

Receivables are entered at amortized cost, considering the
time factor and their presumed realisation value.
In detail, the first value entered is represented by the nominal
value of the receivable net of bonuses, discounts and inclusive
of costs eventually directly allocated to the transaction that
originated the receivable. Transaction costs, eventual positive
or negative commissions and any difference between the

original value and nominal value at due date are included in
the amortized cost calculation using the effective interest rate
criteria.
The Company has assumed no significant effects arising from
the application of amortized cost and discounting when due
date of receivables is within twelve months, considering,
besides, every contractual and factual considerations when
the receivables have been recorded and transaction costs and
difference between original value and nominal value at due
date are not material.
A specific provision for bad debts has been established to
face possible insolvency risks, the consistency of the doubtful
items is verified periodically and - in any case - each year end,
taking into account both the insolvencies already occurred
or considered probable and general economic conditions,
industry and country risk.

Cash at banks and on hand
Cash at banks and on hand is entered at nominal value,
considered to represent the presumed realisation value.

Accruals and deferments
For multi-year transactions, accruals and deferments are
calculated on a “pro tempore” basis, so as to enter the relevant
cost and revenue portion shared by two or more years.
Specifically, accrued income and deferred charges refer to
revenues and costs of the year, although formally recorded
in the following year; prepaid expenses and deferred income
refer to expenses and income materially occurred during the
current year, but that relate to future years.
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Reserves for risks and charges

Taxes

Reserves for risks and charges consider the provisions allocated
to cover losses, or debts of a given nature and certain or
probable existence, for which however the exact amount or
contingency date was not known at year-end. The allocations
reflect the best possible estimation of the relative amounts
based on available information. Risks for which a liability is
only possible and not certain are illustrated in the Notes to
the financial statements, without allocating a specific risks and
charges provision.

Income taxes are recorded based on the estimated tax burden
for the year with reference to statutory tax regulations and
taking account of exemptions and concessions applicable.
Deferred and pre-paid taxes are recorded to take account of
the fiscal effects both in relation to items of income or costs
that concur in forming the profit for the year other than the
year in which they contribute to form the taxable income and
in order to reflect the deferred fiscal effects relative to the
consolidation adjustments. Where necessary, deferred and
pre-paid taxes have been updated to reflect rate variations.

Employees’ severance indemnity reserve
The employees’ severance indemnity reserve is commensurate
with the amounts payable to the employees on the workforce
at the closing date of the year, in compliance with statutory
legislation and the applicable collective employment contracts.

Payables
Payables are entered at amortized cost, considering the time
factor and their presumed realisation value. In detail, the
first value entered is represented by the nominal value of
the payables net of bonuses, discounts and inclusive of costs
eventually directly allocated to the transaction that originated
the payables. Transaction costs, eventual positive or negative
commissions and any difference between the original value
and nominal value at due date are included in the amortized
cost calculation using the effective interest rate criteria.
The Company has assumed no significant effects arising from
the application of amortized cost and discounting when due
date of payables is within twelve months, also considering
any contractual and factual considerations when payables
have been recorded and transaction costs and the difference
between original value and nominal value at due date are not
material.

Cost and revenue recognition
Sales revenues and purchasing costs are recognised at the time
of transfer of ownership, which generally occurs at the time of
shipment or at the time of receipt respectively, net of returns,
discounts, allowances and premiums; the other revenues and
costs (provision of services, financial services, etc.) are recorded
in accordance with the accrual principle.
Costs and revenues arising between Group companies and
infra-group dividends are eliminated.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Captions stated in foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currency are converted into Euro at the
historic exchange rates on the transaction dates. Exchange
rate gains and losses incurred at the time of collection of
receivables and settlement of payables in foreign currency are
recorded in the income statement under financial income and
expenses.
Receivables and payables existing at year-end expressed in
currencies other than Euro were converted at the exchange
rates effective at year-end.

Derivatives
Contracts taken out to cover exchange risks are valued
consistent with the underlying financial transactions to which
they refer. Exchange rate or interest rate swap contracts that
are not correlated to the receivables and/or payables entered
at the reference date of the financial statements are valued
separately. Financial derivative instruments are entered at
fair value. Variations of fair value are entered in the income
statement, or, if the instrument covers the risk of fluctuation
of expected financial flows of another financial instrument
or of a forecast transaction, directly entered in a net equity
positive or negative reserve; said reserve is entered in the
income statement in the value and at the time corresponding
to the occurrence or variation of the cash flows of the covered
instrument or on the occurrence of the underlying transaction
to which they refer. In case fair value at reference date is
positive it is entered in item “positive financial derivatives”
under financial fixed assets or current financial assets. When
the value is negative it is entered in item “negative financial
derivatives” under risks and charges reserve.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Comments on the single captions
of the financial statements

The “other changes” column includes the effect of the
exchange rate fluctuations, as well as reclassifications made
for a more uniform presentation of various items.
Within the meaning and for the purposes envisaged in article
10 of Italian Law no. 72/83 and amendments, an indication is
provided of assets still recognised in equity for which monetary
revaluation has been carried out, specifying the relative
amounts:

Balance sheet
Fixed assets
INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
DESCRIPTION

DESCRIPTION

OPENING
BALANCE

INCREASES

DECREASES

OTHER
CHANGES

CLOSING
BALANCE

HISTORIC COST
- Start-up costs

- Patents and rights to use intellectual
property

5,547

Total

5,547

-

-

88

- Development costs

2,720

-

-

-

2,720

- Patents and rights to use intellectual property

27,800

2,231

(468)

169

29,732

- Concessions, licences, trade marks and similar

8,219

6,126

-

(38)

14,307

Start-up costs

- Goodwill

17,948

10,944

-

1,994

30,886

- Assets in progress and advances

2,387

4,532

-

(93)

6,826

- Others

7,506

269

(131)

476

8,120

These cover start-up costs and expenses incurred when
amending the articles of association, were recorded in the
financial statements with the consent of the Statutory Auditors.

66,668

24,102

(599)

2,508

92,679

- Start-up costs

50

16

-

-

66

- Development costs

544

544

-

-

1,088

- Patents and rights to use intellectual property

24,545

1,817

(468)

(17)

25,877

- Concessions, licences, trade marks and similar

1,458

416

-

(38)

1,836

- Goodwill

4,219

2,640

-

1,996

8,855

- Others

2,547

599

(118)

558

3,586

33,363

6,032

(586)

2,499

41,308

38

(16)

-

-

22

- Development costs

2,176

(544)

-

-

1,632

- Patents and rights to use intellectual property

3,255

414

-

186

3,855

- Concessions, licences, trade marks and similar

6,761

5,710

-

-

12,471

- Goodwill

13,729

8,304

-

(2)

22,031

- Assets in progress and advances

2,387

4,532

-

(93)

6,826

- Others

4,959

(330)

(13)

(82)

4,534

33,305

18,070

(13)

9

51,371

NET VALUES

Total (A-B)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Statutory Auditors.

Patents and right to use intellectual
properties
This caption includes deferred expenses sustained for the
registration of industrial patents and the costs sustained for
application software purchased.
The increase during the year is mainly due to the purchase
and implementation of software for information technology
management by the Parent Company and by Indian subsidiary
“Bonfiglioli Power Transmission Pvt Ltd”.

These costs are constituted mainly by trademark registration
charges. The increase in the financial year is related for 6.1
M€ to the additional allocation to trade mark of part of the
consolidation difference emerging following the purchase of
full share capital of the subsidiary O&K Antriebstechnik GmbH.

This revaluation had no effect on the income statement for the
year since it had already been fully amortised.

Goodwill
The value recorded stems to goodwill paid to third parties,
recorded in the financial statements with the consent of the
Statutory Auditors, namely:

Development costs
This item includes costs for the “SMART GEARBOX”

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATIONS

- Start-up costs

recorded in the financial statements with the consent of the

Concessions, licences and trademarks

-

Total (B)

SpA” to realize high efficiency mechatronic systems, that were

REV.
L. 342/2000

88

Total (A)

sustained by the company “Bonfiglioli Mechatronic Research

development project co-financed by the Trentino region,

COMPANY

NET GOODWILL

AMORTISATION

Bonfiglioli Riduttori SpA

1,113

20%

O&K Antriebstechnnik GmbH

20,918

10%

Total

22,031

The change during year relates to the residual consolidation
difference of 10.9 M€ emerging following the purchase of the
full share capital of the subsidiary O&K Antriebstechnik GmbH.

Assets in progress and advances
The main variations during the financial year are detailed
below:

• capitalisation of development costs for an additional 1.7 M€
approx. relating to the “BPD” project for the implementation
of a new generation inverter by the company “Bonfiglioli
Vectron GmbH”. As already specified specified in the
Notes to 2017 Financial Statements, the project has an
implementation time horizon of 3 years and it is planned to
start amortization in 2020 in correlation with the start of the

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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sale of the new product;
• capitalisation of development costs for 1.7 M€ (2 MUSD)
by the subsidiary “Bonfiglioli USA Inc.” in relation to the
exclusive licensing agreement involving Bonfiglioli and
CVT Corp. (Canadian company) in the coming years, for
the development of new solutions using the patented
technology of the Canadian partner. In relation to the sales
of the new product, it is envisaged that amortization shall
begin in 2019;
• capitalisation of development costs for 0.5 M€ by the
subsidiary “Bonfiglioli Mechatronic Research S.p.A.” in

relation to the new three-year project for the implementation
of an IoT (Internet of Things) industrial platform based on
algorithms combining model based reasoning with artificial
intelligence aiming to enhance the range of Bonfiglioli
devices.
Other increases of the year are connected to investments not
completed by the Parent Company.

The column “other changes” includes exchange rate
differences and reclassification of individual items made for a
more homogeneous presentation of various items.
With reference to the item “Land and building depreciation”,
it is noted that the item includes the variation of the value
of the buildings owned by the Parent Company located in
Lippo di Calderara, Vignola and Carpiano for 3.0 M€ total,
necessary to align the value recorded in financial statements

Other

DESCRIPTION

In the most part these costs are composed of maintenance
increases in the value of third parties assets.

REV. L.
413/91

REV. L.
342/2000

REV. L.
2/2009

OTHER

TOTAL

- Land and buildings

406

2,038

-

30,024

225

32,693

- Plant and machinery

224

-

11,691

-

155

12,070

- Industrial and commercial equipment

153

-

-

-

-

153

- Other assets

19

-

-

-

-

19

802

2,038

11,691

30,024

380

44,935

It is clarified that the revaluation pursuant to Italian Law
2/2009 has led to a 230 K€ increase in depreciation on the
OPENING
BALANCE

INCREASES

OTHER
CHANGES

CLOSING
BALANCE

- Land and buildings

151,426

13,099

-

532

165,057

- Plant and machinery

227,594

18,845

(9,997)

4,122

240,564

- Industrial and commercial equipment

104,803

11,963

(2,353)

(108)

114,305

- Other assets

26,834

3,259

(557)

15

29,551

- Assets in progress and advances

16,255

12,717

-

(9,107)

19,955

526,912

59,883

(12,907)

(4,456)

569,432

- Land and buildings

42,775

6,900

-

(1,907)

47,768

- Plant and machinery

188,627

9,341

(9,957)

(1,470)

186,541

- Industrial and commercial equipment

87,357

7,526

(2,089)

(268)

92,526

- Other assets

20,725

2,063

(500)

(123)

22,165

339,484

25,830

(12,546)

(3,768)

349,000

DESCRIPTION

DECREASES

HISTORIC COST

Total (A)
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATIONS

Total (B)

FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS
Investments
The following table provides a breakdown of the

“Investments” item and the changes that occurred during
the year:

OPENING
BALANCE

INCREASES

DECREASES

OTHER
CHANGES

CLOSING
BALANCE

in other companies

80

1

(26)

-

55

Total

80

1

(26)

-

55

DESCRIPTION

The variation of 26 K€ refers to the sale of 10.05% stake of
share capital of the company “SKS Sweden AB” occurred in

January for an amount of 35 K€.

Working capital
INVENTORY
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

Raw materials, supplies and consumables

38,906

30,687

8,219

21,779

Work in progress and semi-finished goods

108,585

83,700

24,885

138

7,386

Finished goods and goods for resale

115,685

99,625

16,060

-

(9,017)

19,955

Advances

366

658

(292)

(361)

(688)

220,432

263,542

214,670

48,872

- Land and buildings

108,651

6,199

-

2,439

117,289

- Plant and machinery

38,967

9,504

(40)

5,592

54,023

- Industrial and commercial equipment

17,446

4,437

(264)

160

- Other assets

6,109

1,196

(57)

- Assets in progress and advances

16,255

12,717

187,428

34,053

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

2018 income statement.

A breakdown is given below:

NET VALUES

Total (A-B)

to the market value.
For an analysis of the investments made during the year we
refer you to the Management Report.
Within the meaning and for the purposes envisaged in article
10 of Italian Law no. 72/83 and amendments, an indication
is provided of assets still recognised in equity for which
monetary revaluation has been carried out, specifying the
relative amounts:

REV. L.
72/83

Total

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

83

Total
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The foregoing amounts are net of the obsolescence reserve, made up as follows:

85

Breakdown of trade receivables by geographical area:

31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

Raw and consumable materials

6,365

6,758

(393)

Sem-finished goods

16,252

16,093

159

Finished goods and goods for resale

10,663

11,111

(448)

Total

33,280

33,962

(682)

2018

2017

Italy

50,693

52,794

Europe

69,405

65,752

Overseas

85,610

71,402

205,708

189,948

Total

Other receivables

Changes in the obsolescence provision are shown below:

A breakdown is given below:
2018

2017

Opening value

33,962

36,372

Increases

1,814

1,813

Decreases

(2,219)

(2,891)

Other changes

(277)

(1,332)

Closing value

33,280

33,962

31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

Tax receivables

11,083

10,578

505

Deferred tax assets

39,712

38,392

1,320

Receivables from others

6,111

7,741

(1,630)

56,906

56,711

195

Total
Tax receivables can be broken down as follows:

The increase in inventories refers to the greater amount
of stocks required to support the significant increase in
turnover of 12.9% on the previous financial year. Rotation

index shows a decline from 96 at 2017 year-end to 104
average days at the end of 2018.

RECEIVABLES

2018

2017

Direct Tax Receivables

166

276

Indirect Tax Receivables

4,647

3,578

Other

886

972

5,699

4,826

Direct Tax Receivables

767

773

SHORT TERM RECEIVABLES

Total short-term tax credits

Trade receivables

MID-LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

A breakdown is given below:
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

Indirect Tax Receivables

4,617

4,979

Trade receivables from customers

230,491

214,234

16,257

Total mid-long-term tax credits

5,384

5,752

(less) Bad debt reserve

(24,783)

(24,286)

(497)

Total

205,708

189,948

15,760

11,083

10,578

The receivables rotation index has improved on the previous
financial year, from 85 average days at end 2017 to 81 at
end 2018.

Trade accounts receivable are recorded net of provision for
bad debts, a breakdown of movements occurred during the
year is given below:
2018

2017

Opening value

24,286

22,743

Provisions

2,968

3,504

Uses/Releases

(2,125)

(1,223)

Other changes

(346)

(738)

Closing value

24,783

24,286

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Total
Mid-long term Indirect Tax receivables for which the use has
been estimated beyond the financial year, but within five
years, relate mainly to the Brazilian subsidiary.
Mid-long-term Direct Tax receivables refer to the receivable,
booked by the Parent Company and “Bonfiglioli Italia

S.p.A.”, for income tax reimbursement (IRES) due to higher
IRAP deductions recognized for 2007-2011 fiscal years as
per Italian Law Decree no. 201/2011.
Related settlement is expected within next five years.
Changes in Deferred tax assets are as follows:
2018

2017

Opening balance

38,392

38,212

Provisions

5,071

5,181

Applications

(3,904)

(3,436)

Changes in rate

43

(844)

Other changes

110

(721)

Closing balance

39,712

38,392

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Other securities

Other receivables can be broken down as follows:

The item other securities refers to the fair value of “Deka
investments” fund quotas purchased by the subsidiary

“Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH” connected with pension
fund.

2018

2017

Receivables from employees

635

830

Advances to suppliers

915

1,273

Receivables from social security institutions

373

449

Insurance refunds

20

16

Guarantee deposits

220

313

Other

212

1,488

2,375

4,369

2,811

2,779

Guarantee deposits

633

560

Other

292

33

Total other mid-long-term receivables

3,736

3,372

Prepaid expensens and accrued income

Total

6,111

7,741

A breakdown is given below:

SHORT TERM RECEIVABLES

Total other short-term receivables

CASH AT BANKS AND ON HAND
Bank and postal accounts
Cash on hand
Total

MID-LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES
Receivables for pensions fund insurance

The decrease in other receivables is mainly connected with
the receipt by subsidiary “Bonfiglioli Mechatronic Research
SpA” of a receivable of 1.4 M€ from APIAE (a Trentino
regional authority) pertaining the contribution connected

87

31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

38,480

28,251

10,229

54

56

(2)

38,534

28,307

10,227

For a comprehensive evaluation of the change in the Group net cash position we invite you to refer to the section in which the
company’s debts are analysed and to the cash flow statement.

with development project approved in 2012 whose costs
are entered in intangible fixed assets.
There are no receivables due in a period beyond five years.

CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
A breakdown is given below:
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

Positive financial derivatives

210

153

57

Other securities

199

207

(8)

Total

409

360

49

2018

2017

Advertising costs

23

43

Insurance

207

143

Bank charges

368

252

Rentals and hire

173

78

Other

397

302

Total

1,168

818

Positive financial derivatives
The item, 210 K€, refers to the total balance of positive
fair value of derivatives connected with purchase/sale of

forward currency in place at 31 December 2018. The item
can be broken down as follows:
2018

2017

USD sales

-

40

GBP sales

6

3

AUD sales

82

110

CNY sales

9

-

EUR purchase

16

-

JPY purchase

97

-

Total

210

153

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Shareholders’ equity
At 31/12/2018 the overall share capital of € 50,000,000
was represented by 50,000,000 ordinary shares with face
value of € 1 each.

It is to be noted that the top shareholder of Bonfiglioli
Riduttori S.p.A. is the company BON-FI S.r.l..

RECONCILIATION STATEMENT BETWEEN NET EQUITY AND INCOME FOR THE YEAR AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 OF PARENT
COMPANY BONFIGLIOLI RIDUTTORI S.p.A.

RESULT FOR THE YEAR

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A. statutory financial statement

8,523

200,634

Accounting of the shareholders’ equity and results of consolidated and associated
equity investments to replace book value in the financial statement of the Parent
Company, net of infra-group dividends

26,409

127,816

Shareholders’ equity and profit attributable to minority interests

(249)

(8,852)

Elimination of infragroup profits on stock

2,705

(20,981)

Reversal of extraordinary infragroup transactions (injections/sales of branches)

383

(1,103)

Leasing agreements recorded using financial method

(387)

4,274

(4)

(27)

37,629

310,613

Other

Consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Statement of changes in consolidated
shareholders’ equity as at 31st December 2018

Balance at 31/12/2015

CONSOLIDATION
RESERVE

CURRENCY
CONVERSION
RESERVE

OTHER
RESERVES

HEDGING
RESERVE

RETAINED
EARNINGS
CARRIED
FORWARD

NET PROFIT (NET
LOSS)

TOTAL

SHARE CAPITAL

LEGAL RESERVE

REVALUATION
RESERVE

30,000

4,240

60,550

16,965

3,613

46,164

(24)

74,167

4,313

239,988

1,760

-

-

-

3,141

-

(588)

(4,313)

-

Destination of financial year result 2015
Currency conversion differences

-

-

-

-

2,264

-

-

-

-

2,264

Derivatives fair values changes

-

-

-

-

-

-

(92)

-

-

(92)

Dividends distributed

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(8)

-

(8)

Other variations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

-

1

Net profit (Loss) of the Group for 2016

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

18,522

18,522

30,000

6,000

60,550

16,965

5,877

49,305

(116)

73,572

18,522

260,675

-

-

-

-

20,211

-

(1,689)

(18,522)

-

Balance at 31/12/2016
Destination of financial year result 2016
Share capital increase

20,000

-

(20,000)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Dividends distributed

-

-

-

-

-

(2,351)

-

(9)

-

(2,360)

Currency conversion differences

-

-

-

-

(11,595)

-

-

-

-

(11,595)

Derivatives fair values changes

-

-

-

-

-

-

(112)

-

-

(112)

Other variations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

-

1

Net profit (Loss) of the Group for 2017

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

23,454

23,454

50,000

6,000

40,550

16,965

(5,718)

67,165

(228)

71,875

23,454

270,063

629

-

-

-

11,945

-

10,880

(23,454)

-

Balance at 31/12/2017
Destination of financial year result 2017
Dividends distributed

-

-

-

-

-

(1,250)

-

(6)

-

(1,256)

Currency conversion differences

-

-

-

-

(3,908)

-

-

-

-

(3,908)

Derivatives fair values changes

-

-

-

-

-

-

(517)

-

-

(517)

Other variations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1)

-

(1)

Net profit (Loss) of the Group for 2018

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

37,380

37,380

50,000

6,629

40,550

16,965

(9,626)

77,860

(745)

82,748

37,032

301,761

Balance at 31/12/2018

The change in the currency conversion provision is mainly due to the strengthening of the Euro against all the major currencies.
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Minority interests

Reserves for risks and charges
MINORITY PROFIT/LOSS

MINORITY CAPITAL
AND RESERVES

MINORITY INTERESTS

Balance at 31/12/2015

644

10,552

11,196

Destination of financial year result 2015

(644)

644

-

Distribution of dividends

-

(193)

(193)

Currency conversion differences

-

390

390

Net income for 2016 attributable to minority interests

(4,487)

-

(4,487)

Balance at 31/12/2016

(4,487)

11,393

6,906

4,487

(4,487)

-

Distribution of dividends

-

(307)

(307)

Currency conversion differences

-

(47)

(47)

Net income for 2017 attributable to minority interests

942

-

942

Balance at 31/12/2017

942

6,552

7,494

Destination of financial year result 2017

(942)

942

-

Distribution of dividends

-

(300)

(300)

Currency conversion differences

-

(94)

(94)

South Africa Sale to the Group

-

(2,097)

(2,097)

Entry of SIMEST in Brazil

-

3,600

3,600

Net income for 2018 attributable to minority interests

249

-

249

Balance at 31/12/2018

249

8,603

8,852

Destination of financial year result 2016

The item originates from the attribution to minority
shareholders of the portion of shareholders’ equity and net

Bonfiglioli Power Transmission Pty Ltd (*)
Bonfiglioli Drives Shanghai Co. Ltd. (**)
Tecnotrans Bonfiglioli S.a.
Bonfiglioli Redutores do Brasil Ltda
Total

TOTAL
CAPITAL AND
PROFIT (LOSS) RESERVES

DELTA

Termination indemnity and similar liabilities

11,802

11,225

577

Tax Reserve

1,132

1,232

(100)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

9,919

7,511

2,408

Negative Financial Derivative

1,008

425

583

269

269

-

Other reserves

31,200

31,307

(107)

Total

55,330

51,969

3,361

This caption includes sales agents’ indemnity reserve, pension
fund for various companies in the Group and the “ATZ”
prepension fund relating to the German subsidiary O&K.

The aforementioned funds saw the following changes during
the year:

2018

2017

Opening value

11,225

11,394

Provisions

1,277

545

Actuarial value (including related interest)

335

358

Other changes

4

(98)

Uses/Releases

(1,039)

(974)

Closing value

11,802

11,225

TOTAL

TAX RESERVE
The breakdown of changes during the financial year is given below:

214

726

940

738

2,479

3,217

-

3,947

3,947

188

3,759

3,947

35

330

365

16

314

330

-

3,600

3,600

-

-

-

249

8,603

8,852

942

6,552

7,494

(*) also includes the results recorded by Bonfiglioli South Africa Pty Ltd.
(**) also includes the results recorded by Bonfiglioli Trading Shanghai Co. Ltd.
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TOTAL
CAPITAL AND
PROFIT (LOSS) RESERVES

31/12/2017

TERMINATION INDEMNITY AND SIMILAR LIABILITIES

2017
TOTAL

31/12/2018

Consolidated reserve for future losses

income deriving from the full consolidation of the following
companies:
2018

COMPANY

93

PROVISION FOR CURRENT TAXES

2018

2017

Opening value

1,232

790

Appropriations for taxes

527

250

Uses/Releases

(609)

(183)

Other changes

(18)

375

Closing value

1,132

1,232

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

OTHER RESERVES FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

The breakdown of changes during the financial year is given below:

The breakdown of changes during the financial year is given below:
2018

2017

Opening value

7,511

8,328

Provision for deferred taxation

2,827

591

Applications/Releases

(455)

(1,270)

Changes in rate

7

-

Other changes

29

(138)

Closing value

9,919

7,511

The item refers to the total balance of negative fair value
of derivatives connected with purchase/sell of forward

2017

GBP sales

-

2

AUD sales

-

2

CNY sales

23

-

JPY purchase

-

77

EUR purchase

4

61

980

278

1

5

1,008

425

IRS Bonfiglioli Riduttori
IRS Tecnotrans
Total

PROVISIONS

APPLICATIONS/
RELEASES

OTHER
CHANGES

CLOSING
BALANCE

22,336

1,766

(2,280)

(4)

21,818

350

66

-

(1)

415

Other

8,621

873

(524)

(3)

8,967

Total

31,307

2,705

(2,804)

(8)

31,200

Product warranties
Legal risks

currency and Interests Rate Swap in place at 31 December
2018. The item can be broken down as follows:
2018

OPENING BALANCE

DESCRIPTION

NEGATIVE FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

Warranty reserve increase is consequent to the adjustment
of the value to the actual warranty exposure level.
The variation in the legal risks fund derives from set-asides
for disputes in progress.
The item “Other” mainly includes:
• “Restructuring fund” set up to cover restructuring

The breakdown of changes during the financial year is given below:
2018

2017

Opening balance

10,362

10,796

Provisions

4,471

4,375

Applications

(5,038)

(4,777)

Other changes

12

(32)

Closing balance

9,807

10,362

The number of employees in the workforce during the year was as follows (spot and average data):
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

2018 AVERAGE

2017 AVERAGE

181

177

181

188

- White Collars and middle management

1,746

1,645

1,701

1,629

- Direct and indirect blue collar

1,785

1,708

1,745

1,726

330

101

272

178

4,042

3,631

3,899

3,721

The breakdown of changes during the financial year is given below:
OPENING BALANCE

PROVISIONS

APPLICATIONS

OTHER
CHANGES

Consolidated Reserve
for future losses

269

-

-

-

269

Total

269

-

-

-

269

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

expenses in some subsidiaries for total approx 6.9 M€;
• Environmental Recovery fund set up by several companies
in the Group for a total of 0.6 M€;
• “Retirement incentive fund” pertaining to subsidiary
“O&K Antriebstechnik GmbH” of total 0.3 M€.

Employees’ severance indemnity reserve

CONSOLIDATED RESERVE FOR FUTURE LOSSES

DESCRIPTION

95

CLOSING
BALANCE

- Executives and managers

- Temporary workers
Total

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Payables
BONDS
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

2,625

2,625

-

Bonds
This item shows the debenture loan issued by the Parent
Company on 8 September 2005 renewed at maturing date
on 30 June 2027, which is liable to interest at an annual
rate of 1.63%. The foregoing loan, issued for a total of

3,750 K€, is recorded in the financial statements as at the
end of 2018 for 2,625 K€. The remaining debt recorded is
due for 250 K€ within five years and the residual amount
after five years.

FINANCIAL BORROWINGS
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

Overdraft and self-liquidating advances

94,375

47,750

46,625

Financing m/l term

95,517

91,059

4,458

Total due to bank

189,892

138,809

51,083

Amounts due to other financial institutions

4,551

6,044

(1,493)

Bonds

2,625

2,625

-

(38,534)

(28,307)

(10,227)

(199)

(207)

8

158,335

118,964

39,371

(minus) Cash at banks and on hand
(minus) Other securities
Net Cash Position
The caption “Due to other financial institutions” includes
both the medium/long-term loans received from institutions
other than banks (Ministry of Industry pursuant to Law 46)
and also the residual portions of capital of leasing contracts
recorded in accordance with financial method. The figure
is recorded at face with regard to the principal, whilst the
interests due at the end of the year are recorded on an
accrual basis.
With reference to the medium-long term loan signed in
2017 by the Parent Company with a pool of banks, on the

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

date of these financial statements this is entered with an
amortized cost criterion for a total of 82.6 M€ (of which
8.6 M€ mortgaged).
Medium/long-term lines of credit (loans) recorded by Parent
Company provide standard covenants connected to the
trend of Group EBITDA, that as of 31.12.2018 are fully
compliant.
Changes occurring during the year with reference to NCP
are detailed in the following table:
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BALANCE AS AT
31/12/2017

BORROWINGS

REPAYMENTS

RECLASSIFICATIONS

EXCHANGE
RATE DELTA

BALANCE AS AT
31/12/2018

WITHIN
12 MONTHS

BEYOND
12 MONTHS

BEYOND
5 YEARS

GUARANTEES
REAL

47,750

49,838

(3,357)

-

144

94,375

94,375

-

-

(*)

Bonfiglioli Riduttori SpA

75,097

17,890

(10,397)

-

-

82,590

10,716

52,245

19,629

(**)

Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH

2,404

-

(448)

-

-

1,956

472

1,484

-

(**)

Bonfiglioli Drives (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

3,280

-

(1,107)

-

(19)

2,154

1,404

750

-

(**)

Bonfiglioli Slovakia Sro

10,278

-

(2,547)

-

-

7,731

2,232

4,860

639

(**)

Bonfiglioli Vietnam ltd

-

1,086

-

-

-

1,086

121

965

-

91,059

18,976

(14,499)

-

(19)

95,517

14,945

60,304

20,268

5,200

1,268

(2,602)

-

-

3,866

973

2,526

367

Bonfiglioli USA Inc.

418

15

(13)

-

19

439

162

277

-

O&K Antriebstechnik GmbH

189

31

(61)

-

-

159

31

128

-

Bonfiglioli Transmission France SA

28

-

(8)

-

-

20

9

11

-

Tecnotrans Bonfiglioli Sa

209

-

(142)

-

-

67

67

-

-

6,044

1,314

(2,826)

-

19

4,551

1,242

2,942

367

COMPANY
Overdraft and self liquidating advances
Financing with term > 12 months

Total Financing with term > 12 months

AMOUNTS DUE TO OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Bonfiglioli Riduttori SpA

Total due to other financial institutions

(*) Credit line to the Indian subsidiary for 6.7 M€ granted by collateral on assets (inventory and machinery)
(**) Loan secured by pledge on owned factory premises
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Accrued expenses and deferred income

TRADE PAYABLES
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

6,147

5,348

799

Trade payables due to suppliers

216,972

179,662

37,310

Total

223,119

185,010

38,109

Advances

Division of trade payables by geographical area:
2018

2017

Italy

156,081

124,817

Europe

18,723

18,369

Overseas

48,315

41,824

223,119

185,010

Total

OTHER PAYABLES
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

Tax payables

3,529

2,504

1,025

Amounts due to social security

9,706

9,037

669

Other payables

27,223

25,662

1,561

Total

40,458

37,203

3,255

The following table provides a breakdown of the “Tax payables”:
2018

2017

2,875

2,198

654

265

3,529

2,463

Direct tax payables/withholding taxes to be paid

-

41

Total mid-long-term tax payables

-

41

3,529

2,504

Direct tax payables/withholding taxes to be paid
Other
Total short-term tax payables

Total
The following table provides a breakdown of the “Other payables”:

2017

25,354

19,569

Payables for purchasing investments

640

2,200

Other

664

1,371

26,658

23,140

Payables to employees

565

2.522

Total other mid-long-term payables

565

2,522

27,223

25,662

Total other short term payables

Total

A breakdown is given below
2018

2017

Interest payable on loans

570

744

Insurance

14

14

Contribution APIAE BMR

893

1,090

Other

253

200

Total

1,730

2,048

The variations in the financial year relate mainly to interests
payable on loans taken out by the Parent Company and
the deferments on the contributions received by “Bonfiglioli
Mechatronic Research SpA” from APIAE (a Trentino regional
authority). Having opted for the “indirect” accounting
method, the contribution has been recorded by competence

based on estimated useful life of the assets to which it
refers (five years) hence for 1/5 in item A5 -Other revenues
and income and for the residual amount deferred for
competence to following years, through the item deferred
income, to grant correlation within costs and revenues.

Income statement
NET REVENUES FROM SALES AND SERVICES
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

912,964

808,442

104,522

Total
Sales were made in the following geographic areas:
VALUES IN M€

2018

%

2017

%

EMEA

487.0

53.3%

454.0

56.2%

AME

166.0

18.2%

148.2

18.3%

APAC

260.0

28.5%

206.2

25.5%

Total

913.0

100%

808.4

100%

For more details on the Group trend, we refer you to the Management Report.
2018

Payables to employees

101

ASSETS INCREASE FOR INTERNAL WORKS
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

2,212

1,411

801

Total
This item includes the increases in intangible fixed assets
relating specifically to the aforementioned projects of

“Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH” for 1.7 M€ and “Bonfiglioli
Mechatronic Research S.p.A.” for 0.5 M€.

“Payables for purchasing investments” refers to the instalment payable in January 2019 of the purchase price of the whole
share in the South African subsidiary.
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OTHER REVENUES AND INCOMES

103

PERSONNEL COSTS
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

18.331

17.365

966

Total
A breakdown is given below:

31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

Salaries and wages

130.143

123.252

6.891

Social security contributions

34.657

33.118

1.539

Severance pay

4.471

4.375

96

2018

2017

Termination Indemnity and similar

1.040

723

317

Sales and minor services

5.838

5.837

Other staff costs

1.582

1.082

500

Refund for packaging and transport costs

4.535

3.695

Refunds for defective processing/material

972

999

Total

171.893

162.550

9.343

Capital gains and extraordinary contingent assets

1.523

1.554

Capital contribution

2.358

1.391

Funds release

1.493

1.570

591

868

31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

Other

1.021

1.451

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets

6.032

5.670

362

Total

18.331

17.365

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

22.729

21.168

1.561

Intangible fixed assets write-off

-

40

(40)

Capital contribution have been received principally from
the Parent Company and from the subsidiaries “Bonfiglioli

Mechatronic Research SpA” and “Bonfiglioli Transmission
Pty Ltd.”.

Tangible fixed assets write-off

3.101

3.895

(794)

Bad debts provision

2.968

3.504

(536)

34.830

34.277

553

31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

1.766

2.781

(1.015)

653

173

480

2.419

2.954

(535)

31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

6.035

5.141

894

Insurance refunds

DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND WRITE-DOWNS

Total

COSTS FOR RAW MATERIALS, SUPPLIES, CONSUMABLES AND GOODS FOR RESALE
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

569.082

480.306

88.776

Total

OTHER PROVISIONS
Warranty reserve
Environmental recovery fund and others
Total

COSTS FOR SERVICES
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

125.673

115.274

10.399

Total
This item includes outsourced processes in the amount
of 30.5 M€ (27.9 M€ in 2017), costs for commission,
transport, advertising and other commercial
services, remuneration of the Board of Directors and

auditing bodies, insurance policies, consultancy, bank
charges, electrical power, external labour, logistics
and security services, travel expenses and other minor items.

COSTS FOR USE OF THIRD PARTY ASSETS
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

10.664

9.930

734

Total
This item mainly concerns the lease of IT systems, motor
vehicles, rentals for the lease of plants and external depots

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

and royalties paid to third parties.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Total
This is a residual item and includes expenses and charges
that cannot be classified under the previous headings. It
refers to local duties, general production, commercial, and
minor administrative expenses, capital losses of an ordinary
nature, and other minor items.
It is noted 1.1 M€ non-recurring, relating for 0.6 M€ to

the tax on building transfers (RETT) recorded by “O&K
Antriebstechnik GmbH” following the variation in the
company ownership and for 0.5 M€ to the elimination
difference not allocable to assets and liabilities and
goodwill of the South African subsidiary purchased 100%
from third parties.

FINANCIAL INCOME
Total

31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

1.990

1.307

683

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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INCOME TAXES

A breakdown is given below:
2018

2017

300

-

1,366

902

-

82

Cash discounts received

91

100

Commercial and other interest receivable

233

223

1,990

1,307

Income from investments
Bank interest income
Leasing rentals indexation

Total

INTEREST EXPENSES AND OTHER FINANCIAL CHARGES
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

7,667

7,467

200

A breakdown is given below:
2018

2017

Interests on payables to banks

2,316

2,278

Interest payable on loans

2,103

2,679

43

43

1,271

581

1,256

1,240

Other

678

646

Total

7,667

7,467

Interests on bonds
Premiums and expenses on derivatives
(IRS and forward contracts)
Cash discounts paid

DELTA

Current taxes

(17,475)

(15,608)

(1,867)

Deferred taxes

(2,379)

679

(3,058)

Prepaid taxes

1,239

901

338

Direct taxes related with previous years

(262)

(316)

54

(18,877)

(14,344)

(4,533)

Further information
To complete the information required by Article 38 of D.Lgs.
127/1991 and other provisions of the Italian Civil Code, the
following further information is set out below:

31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

Performance Guarantee

6,952

6,482

470

Collaterals

26,391

17,320

9,071

Commitments for the purchase of shares

7,547

3,947

3,600

40,890

27,749

13,141

Total

31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

(1,015)

(5,638)

4,623

A breakdown is given below:
2018

2017

Currency exchange gains

12,861

13,750

Currency exchange losses

(13,876)

(19,388)

Total

(1,015)

(5,638)

The amount detailed consists of:
• guarantees granted by third parties refer to sureties or
primary request guarantees issued from Credit institution
on contractual undertakings or debts beard by Bonfiglioli
of 6.9 M€;
• commitment to SIMEST for the purchase of interests
in Chinese and Brazilian companies, entered by the
Parent Company respectively for 3.9 M€ and 3.6 M€ in
conformity with the agreements with SIMEST;

• collateral on tangible assets of the Indian subsidiary for
6.7 M€;
• pledge on buildings as detailed below:
- Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A. for 8.6 M€
- Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH for 2.0 M€
- Bonfiglioli Slovakia Sro for 7 M€
- Bonfiglioli Drives Shanghai Co. Ltd. for 16.9 MCNY
equal to 2.2 M€.

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED FROM NATIONAL PUBLIC ADMINISTRATIONS OF
EQUIVALENT NATIONAL BODIES

ADJUSTMENTS TO FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
31/12/2018

31/12/2017

DELTA

Securities current assets write up

-

2

(2)

Securities current assets write off

(9)

-

(9)

Total

(9)

2

(11)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

31/12/2017

COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND POTENTIAL LIABILITIES NOT RECORDED IN
BALANCE SHEET

EXCHANGE RATE GAINS (LOSSES)
Total

31/12/2018

Total

The income from investments relate to the profits of the company Grumento accounted for reasons of transparency by “O&K
Antriebstechnik GmbH”.

Total

105

Pursuant to and by effect of Italian Law no. 124 of 4 August
2017 “Annual Law on the Market and Competition” the
information relating to subsidies, contributions, paid

appointments and economic benefits of any kind received
in 2018 from national administrations or equivalent national
bodies, is given below.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER YEAR END
FUNDING BODY

RECIPIENT COMPANY

SIMEST SPA (Tax Code
04102891001)

Bonfiglioli Redutores do Brasil Ltda (Brazil)

AMOUNT IN
EURO

DESCRIPTION

3,600,000

Share in capital

Bonfiglioli Mechatonic Research Spa

664,353

Final balance payment for a total of €
1,489,674.21 on the R&D Project in relation
to Provisional Law no 6 of 13/12/1999 articles
12 and 14bis, of which an advance payment of
€ 825,320.75 was made on 6/12/2012.

TRENTINO SVILUPPO SPA
Bonfiglioli Mechatonic Research Spa
(Tax Code 00123240228)

80,610

Contribution for the rental of spaces at the
Polo Meccatronica Rovereto

APIAE Trento (TN) (Tax
Code 00337460224)

Total
For a systematic interpretation of the law, the facilitations
targeting all the companies (including but not limited to fiscal
measures such as hyper-amortization, super-amortization,
school bonus and tax credits for research and development
and other facilities such as the Cassa Integrazione Guadagni
- redundancy fund) are not included as their advantages are

4,344,963
not targeted at a specific company reality.
In relation to the receipt of state aid which the Italian
companies in the Group received during the financial year,
for any matters not specifically indicated in the above table,
refer to the indications in the National Register of State Aid.

With reference to events occurring after the closure of the
financial year, it is reported as follows.
For the increasingly felt need to improve the economic and
financial information and for greater comparability on an
international scale, the Group resolved on the transition
to international accounting principles IAS/IFRS (transition
date 01.01.2018) for the consolidated financial statements
and the separate financial statements in the jurisdictions
which permit such transition. These consolidated financial
statements are therefore the last ones drafted according to
national accounting principles OIC.

It is also reported that, on 16 January 2019, Bonfiglioli and
Pricoa Capital Group undersigned a shelf facility of 125
MUSD by which the Bonfiglioli Group will have the faculty,
in the coming three years, to issue Private Placements to
be undersigned by Pricoa Capital Group. This transaction
marks the first private placement for Bonfiglioli. The
partnership with Pricoa adds an expert, long-term funder to
the Bonfiglioli capital structure, at the same time increasing
the diversification of funding to the company, which is
seeing significant expansion at global level.

Calderara di Reno (Bo), March 29th, 2019
for the Board of Directors
The Chairwoman
Sonia Bonfiglioli

REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS AND STATUTORY AUDITORS
During the year, the following amounts were paid out as remuneration to Group Directors and auditing bodies:
2018

2017

Directors

1,122

1,100

Auditors

748

817

1,870

1,917

Total

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The Group holds commercial relations with B.R.T. S.p.A.,
owned by the shareholders and administrators of Bonfiglioli
Riduttori S.p.A.. B.R.T. S.p.A. supplies spare parts in Italy
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on behalf of Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A, and, partly, abroad.
The business relations relate to the sale of Bonfiglioli
components and products under normal market conditions.
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Annex A
Consolidated cash flow statement
2018

2017

(118,964)

(110,768)

Net income of the group

37,380

23,454

Minority interest income

249

942

Depreciation, amortization and write-downs

34,830

34,277

Provision to funds

2,419

2,954

Provision for taxes

18,877

14,344

First level Cash Flow

93,755

75,971

Decrease (Increase) in Trade Receivables

(18,728)

(5,869)

Decrease (increase) in inventory

(48,872)

(24,019)

Decrease (increase) in other assets

(545)

591

Decrease (increase) in trade payables

37,310

17,405

Decrease (increase) in other liabilities

4,675

6,187

526

(133)

(Utilization) of funds

(2,504)

(4,242)

Tax payments

(17,508)

(25,118)

B. Cash flow originating from (used for) operating activities

48,109

40,773

Net investments in tangible and intangible fixed assets

(66,571)

(38,913)

Acquisition of O&K Antriebstechnik Gmbh

(17,044)

-

25

(4)

(83,590)

(38,917)

Dividends

(1,256)

(2,360)

Change in minority interests

1,109

(354)

Variation in conversion reserve

(3,908)

(11,595)

Exchange rate (gains) losses on fixed assets

683

4,368

Derivatives Reserve FV variation

(517)

(112)

(1)

1

D. Cash flow originating from (used for) financing activities

(3,890)

(10,052)

E. CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR (B+C+D)

(39,371)

(8,196)

F. CLOSING NET CASH POSITION (A+E)

(158,335)

(118,964)

(in K€)
A. OPENING NET CASH POSITION
B. OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Derivatives FV variation

C. INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Increase)/decrease in share investments and other financial fixed assets
C. Cash flow originating from (used for) investing activities
D. FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Other minor changes
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8.

Independent
auditor’s
report

This section has been translated into English solely for the convenience of
international readers
Independent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report
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Note
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Note
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Note

We have a relentless
commitment to excellence,
innovation and sustainability.
Our team creates, distributes
and services world-class power
transmission and drive solutions
to keep the world in motion.

HEADQUARTERS
Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A.
Via Giovanni XXIII, 7/A
40012 Lippo di Calderara di Reno
Bologna (Italy)
tel: +39 051 647 3111
fax: +39 051 647 3126
bonfiglioli@bonfiglioli.com
www.bonfiglioli.com

